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This is not 
telecom as usual. 



~ 

Telecommunications is changing. In wireless and 
wireline, what's possible in voice, data and video is 
expanding - and with it, competition. 

This is not telecom as usual. Barriers are disappearing; 
traditional industry lines are blurring. In this new 
age, the winners will be those who deliver one thing 
above all: Simplicity. 
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The world of communications is migrating to a 
place where data, video and voice share a common, Internet Protocol- 
based communication platform. In this world, the emphasis shifts from 
the network to its edges - to the technology and devices in the hands, 
homes and offices of the customer. In the world of IP, common stan- 
dards translate to an open marketplace, where communication service 
providers of all types and sizes can compete for the same customer. 

Bell’s edge in this new, intensely competitive world is in its 
powerful brand and its 26 million customer connections. The Bell 
name is known and trusted by millions of Canadians. 
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Bell’s breadth of services represents tremendous potential to 
broaden customer relationships. With individuals and families, we 
have the opportunity to provide the convenience of multiple services 
from one provider, with a single bill. With small and mid-sized 
businesses, we have the capabilities to become a trusted technology 
and telecommunications advisor. With large enterprises, we’re 
expanding beyond connectivity to become a much higher-value 
service provider. We’re becoming a Bell that’s quicker to learn from 
the customer. Fast to move from insight to action. Agile in the face 
of change. 
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The key to 
the future is in our ability to serve our customers better than any 
competitor. To do that, we are building a Bell that delivers world- 
class products - simply packaged, simple to use, with industry- 
leading customer service and top-tier efficiency. In other words, 
we’re building a simpler Bell to deliver simplicity to customers. 

We established an important foundation when we organized 
Bell around its three main markets: Consumer, Small and Medium 
Business, and Enterprise, our largest business customers. The new 
Bell structure will help us gain deeper knowledge of our customers 
and improve our ability to provide solutions that encompass a 
broader range of their needs. 
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Throughout 2003, we worked to improve core processes across 
the organization to increase the speed at which we deliver those 
solutions. We’ve streamlined to simplify the customer experience, 
improve the quality of service and reduce costs. For example, 
the Consumer group advanced its goal to present one face to the 
customer by better integrating call centres and Bell World stores. 
In Small and Medium Business, we successfully reduced the time 
it takes to open a high-speed Internet account from 37 days to five. 
And Enterprise began the process of transforming itself into a more 
agile, integrated service company - better able to leverage its deep 
network expertise with improved service delivery for end-to-end 
competitive advantage. 
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We’re focused on helping customers choose 
Bell for more of their communications needs. Making it easier for 
customers - to select Bell products, to use them and to stay with 
Bell - is the best barometer of our success. 

Whether we’re working with an individual, a small business or 
a large corporation, our value centres on providing tools to make it 
easier to address day-to-day complexity. 

For customers, achieving simplicity is rarely simple, but Bell 
is intensifying its efforts to help customers get there by enhancing 
the value it brings. 
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In our Consumer business, we delivered One Bill and made 
another step forward with the launch of The Bundle. This gives our 
long-distance customers the opportunity to obtain two or more Bell 
services, including Internet access and television services, through 
one point of contact. Small and Medium Business is piloting wire- 
line, wireless and Internet service packages to increase the number 
of customers using multiple Bell services. In Enterprise, we are 
enhancing our ability to converge voice, data and video into a next- 
generation platform enabling high-value services such as wireless 
data, security and network management to our customers. 





traditional industry definitions no longer apply. A world that can change t 
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We developed a Voice over IP product in the fourth quarter, with 
some trials planned for the first half of 2004. By mid-year, we will 
have IP migration plans for all of our major Enterprise customers. 
We are partnering with industry leaders like Nortel Networks to 
ensure Canadian businesses are among the first to reap the benefits 
of IP, with Microsoft to make Internet television a reality and with 
Lucent to deliver more bandwidth to consumers. 

We opened new innovation centres in Ottawa, Montreal and, most 
recently, Toronto, to incubate new ideas and rapidly develop them. 
This is the future: Bell’s world of IP, a world of new capabilities, 
new services and lower cost to provide them. 
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Chairman's Message 

This is my second report as Chairman of the Board of  Bell Canada Enterprises. 

The first focused on our work t o  renew the credibility and financial strength 

of the company and concentrated on corporate governance creating a greater 

independence between the Board and management. 

Our high standards for corporate governance, directed at sustaining business 

reputation and increasing shareholder value, have been widely recognized. In 

2003, we took more steps to  further our progress. We better aligned Directors' 

compensation with shareholders' interest. We created a pension fund committee 

to  assist the Board in the oversight of the pension fund. And we welcomed 

Ron Brenneman, Chief Executive Officer of Petro-Canada, t o  our Board. 

In December 2003, with the credibility and financial strength of BCE restored, 

management outlined i t s  vision of the future of telecommunications at its annual 

meeting with the financial community. Management presented its plans to  capture 

that future with the full support of the Board. 

The potential for BCE is enormous. Its traditional wireline business is solid, and 

the wireless and Internet Protocol (IP) revolutions provide opportunities for the 

future. The limits of the technology drivers of those revolutions - microchip, optical, 

electronic storage and software - are far in the future. BCE's principal opportunity 

and challenge will be to  transition from the successful wireline business to  a much 

broader set of services based on wireless and IP networks. It will need to  manage 

that transition carefully in order not t o  sacrifice traditional earnings, while building 

its leadership in the new services. 

BCE is already a leader in wireless; i t  will aggressively compete with cable for the 

broadband home and i t  will evolve to  master the integrated business solutions 

value chain. BCE has always been an outstanding network organization. But as 

connectivity becomes increasingly commoditized in an IP world, just providing the 

network will no longer be good enough. The future will require a layer of applica- 

tions and services over the new network. It is these applications and services that 
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contain the systems and the organizations that will make communications simple 

and transparent for any customer. And in the attainment of simplicity, in telecom- 

munications as in any field, the most important element is not the concept but the 

implementation or execution of the concept. 

In a time of profound structural change in the worldwide telecommunications 

industry, it is worth noting that Canada has had a long-standing tradition of 

using private money for public good in an enlightened and responsible regulatory 

environment - one that has provided Canada and Canadians with worldwide 

telecommunications leadership. Real, facilities-based competition is  the basis and 

the result of our home-grown regulatory mode!. Today, ne:n:-entrant wireline 

competitors are trying t o  convince the regulator t o  mandate sufficiently cheap 

access t o  the incumbents’ networks so they can avoid investing. This would create 

artificial competition that would weaken the entire industry And be the wrong 

public policy. 

In a very short period of time - only two years - and with much hard work, many 

positive changes have been brought about at BCE by a capable and committed 

management. Through the present and upcoming challenging period, the Board will 

continue to  support thoughtful, reasoned and courageous work. By supporting that 

work and vision with ever more passion and boldness, an even greater company can 

be built a t  BCE. 

A great company. There is nothing this country needs more of than great 

companies with head offices here - in Canada. 

Richard J. Currie, C.M. 

Chairman of the Board 

BCE Inc. 
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From the President and CEO 

These were the principles we said were important in our 

annual report to you last year. They guided our progress 

in 2003, giving us focus and clarity of purpose. With an 

eye on these fundamentals, we built momentum within 

the company throughout the year, and that momentum 

continues to accelerate. 

Accomplishing what we set out to do 

In my letter to you last year, I told you we would intensify 

our focus on our customers while maintaining strong 

financial discipline. I said we have to put the customer at 

the centre ~f all we do while we work to build a financially 

durablc organiratiou. Without question, we made important 

progresc in 2003 against those measures. 

First, linancial performance. We saw a $636 million 

improvement to our cost structure, thanks to the hard work of 

all our employees who followed through on our commitment 

to year-over-year productivity improvement. Their efforts 

led to an increase in our EBITDA performance of over six 

per cent to reach more than $7.4 billion and a $2.5 billion 

improvement in our free cash flow, well exceeding our origi- 

nal target for the year. And that in turn allowed us to reduce 

our net debt by $2 billion. 

BCE ended the year with a balance sheet that was 

significantly improved from just twelve months before - 

this gives us the flexibility we need to plan and invest for 

the future. 

Customer focus from the ground up 

In 2003 we successfully reorganiLed the company to reflect 

the markets we serve: Consumer, Small and Medium 

Business, and Enterprise, our largest business customers. 
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This represents a profound and important change for our 

company. We have stepped away from our traditional producl 

focus and moved to better integrate the company around 

the unique needs of three distinct customer types. Our new 

structure removes barriers that once existed within Bell that 

made it difficult to understand our customers. We’re now 

dedicated to serving them in a unified way. 

Our new customer-centred organization positions us to 

capitalize on Bell’s two greatest strengths - our brand and 

the breadth of our services. 

Simplicity in action 

Providing simplicity to our customers means first simplifying 

the way we operate. Integrating internal administrative 

systems. Retraining our front-line employees. Giving them 

greater knowledge of the broad array of services we offer. 

Putting the real emphasis where it belongs - on serving cus- 

tomers the way they want to be served, and doing it profitably. 

In  addition to our tinancial performance and successful 

transition to a new organiLational structure, we accomplished 

much to be proud of i n  2003~ 

One call service for all moves and The Bundle in our 

Consumer business are excellent examples of our efforts to 

make our customers’ lives simpler. Emily, the voice-activated 

call routing technology we introduced at the end of 2002, 

was extremely well received. We launched a French-speaking 

version in  2003. And we are now taking the same capability 

and turning it into a product for our large business customers. 

That’s the spirit of Bell today. 

Our wireless scrviees had one of our best performances 

ever in 2003. Wireless revenues increased by 15 per cent, and 

the number of wireless customers increased by I3 per cent. 
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And while delivering that growth, we kept customer churn at 

an industry-leading 1.4 per cent, which proves simplicity and 

service do more than draw our customers to our products. 

It convinces them to stay. 

Early in this report, we mentioned the dramatic reduction 

in the time it takes to deliver high-speed Internet services 

to our Small and Medium Business customers. This is an 

extremely important accomplishment -just as significant 

is the fact that it was completed in just two months. It’s 

an early win. We are capitalizing on it to bring even more 

momentum to our broader efforts to accelerate cycle times 

and improve service quality across the entire company. 

I n  2003, we took a hard look at our Enterprise business 

and established a clear strategic direction to expand beyond 

our traditional connectivity portfolio to higher growth 

value-added solutions. Bell is providing our largest and 

most complex customers with network management and 

security, hosted Voice over IP, advanced contact centres 

and wireless data. We’re moving aggressively to leverage 

and market that expertise. 

An exciting new destination: the world of 1P 

The map of telecoinmunications is being redrawn, trans- 

formed by technology, competition and changing 

demographics. Internet Protocol (IP) is rapidly becoming 

the network standard of the Internet Age. This creates a 

new world of possibility for individuals and businesses. 

It also creates a whole new competitive landscape. 

This is not telecom as usual. The transition to all-purpose, 

open standard IP networks and the corresponding shift of 

emphasis to smart devices at the edge of those networks 

represent a significant shift for industry participants. In the 

IP world, virtually anyone can cost-effectively provide 

services to the end user. Traditional definitions of markets 

and services will matter less and less as the lines that once 

separated distinct markets - local and long distance, wire- 

line and wireless, voice and data - become increasingly 

irrelevant. This will create an environment of no barriers, 

where competitors bear little resemblance to one another 

beyond the services they provide. 

This no-barrier world that IP is bringing about will 

challenge all of us. It will challenge our company, our 

management, our people and certainly our industry and our 

customers. It will also challenge those who regulate the 

industry. In an industry as critical as ours, in one as deeply 

woven into how advanced economies work, it’s essential 

that we acknowledge the change that’s occurring and set 

our definitions and goals to align with it. 

This much, at least, is simple: It’s a new game. It requires 

new rules. 

I’ve said this before - if you aren’t managing the change 

that’s going on around you, if you aren’t constantly reinvent- 

ing yourself, you’re not on track for success. 

At our annual meeting with the financial community in 

December, we announced our intention to migrate 100 per 

cent of our core traffic onto a national IP network by 2006, 

offering by that time a full suite of IP-based services to 

our customers. 

At the time of the announcement, we had already 

made real progress toward our objective. During 2003, we 

developed a cost-efficient way to substantially expand 

the bandwidth of the local link in our residential network. 
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We developed new technology that enables us to add video 

capabilities to our high-speed Internet offerings. We created, 

in just 100 days, our own consumer Voice over IP product that 

we will be testing in the first half of 2004. It was definitely 

a running start, and we expect to build upon the momentum 

in the coming year. 

'We see a new world of opporiurrity iri the world of IF. 

How will we differentiate ourselves in an industry with such 

radically changed fundamentals? 

We wiii diflerentiate oursclves i n  the breadth of our ser- 

vices, in the quality of our products, in how well we deliver 

and support those products, and in the quality of our finan- 

re&&vz to our peei~s. "e eqiiipped like 

no other to lead. We have the infrastructure, the people, the 

technology and the resources to deliver the world of 1P and 

all of its exciting benefits. 

Our plans are in place, our organization is engaged and 

our direction is clear. In the Consumer segment, we will 

be the provider of choice for telephony, Internet and video 

services to help customers create the broadband home. For 

small and mid-sized businesses, we will work to establish 

ourselves as a trusted IT advisor, helping them take maxi- 

mum advantage of new technology that's emerging. In the 

Enterprise segment, we will become more than a source 

of connectivity, offering a much richer set of value-added 

services that enable large companies to be more productive 

and focus on their core businesses. 

Leadership for Canada 

This is important work we're doing - important for us, Tor 

our employees and for our shareholders. Our goal is to set 

the standard in an 1P world for the breadth and quality of 

services we provide to our customers in Canada and beyond. 

This is important for Canada. As we deliver for our 

customers, we enable them to make Canada an even more 

connected, productive and innovative place. Working 

together - within our company, with indu\try colleagues, 

with cu,torner\, with government ~ we have the opporiuriiiy 

as Canadians to show the world what's possible. An exciting 

future lies ahead, and we at Bell Canada Enterprises intend 

co help lead the way. 

Next year will mark the 125th anniversary of Bell Canada's 

service to thi\ country. Throughout our history, one of our 

gie& 4treiigii-i~ hdi bicn h e  pi& our ernpicyeel have in what 

this company does. There's a pride among Bell people in how 

we \erve our cuctomcrs, in  how we m-ve our communities, 

our country, and in how we serve our shareholders. 

That pride i$ the source of my confidence. Because it i \  

that pride that makes us unwilling to \ettle for \econd place 

and drives the determination, the passion that will keep us 

in the lead As 1 look at all we have accomplished, at our 

hnancial performance and our su~cesses over the ~ ~ 1 s t  year, 

I believe our progress is sound. The future'? Bring it on. 

Michael J. Sabia 

President and Chipj Executive Ofic-er 

BCE Inc. 
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At BCE, we believe we 
play a critical role in Canadian communities. We 
are committed to nurturing a successful society 
and to providing regular, comprehensive reports on 
our role as a corporate citizen on social, economic 
and environmental matters. 

Society wireline and wireless communications, 

In 2003, we invested in  a host of educational, 

hcalth care, research, and community develop- 

inent initiatives. While we wpport a large variety 

of undertakings, we emphasize those that help 

unleash youth potential by helping Canadians 

live and learn in new ways - through the inno- 

vative use of communications technology. 

e-business, new media, humanlcomputer inter- 

action and e-health applications. Bell Labs 

provide an innovative environment for more 

than 600 students and renowned university 

researchers across the country. 

In addition to corporate support, we also 

encourage employees to actively take part 

We believe that by investing in young Canadians, we are 

sowing the seeds of a stronger future for our country. In 2003, 

we supported youth through organizations such as Kids Help 

Phone, Junior Aclzievenzent, School Net, Toronto’s Hospital 

,for Sick Children, and Ste-Justine Hospitul in Montreal. 

In our modern knowledge economy, innovation is a key 

ingredient for success, the underpinning of future productivity 

and prosperity. Bell Canada has a long-standing commitment 

to innovation in Canada. In 2003, we contributed $5.4 million 

to university research and development initiatives including 

Bell University Laboratories, a cooperative o rgan idon  that 

links Bell Canada professionals with the Canadian university 

research community in key strategic areas of emerging 

in the development of their communities, in many cases 

facilitating contributions and volunteer work with matching 

grants and other programs. Bell Canada employees and 

retirees donated $1.3 million to registered charities, including 

$650,000 to United Way. They also contributed at least 

21 8,000 hours of volunteer work, which represents an 

economic contribution of $4 million. The company donated 

$1.4 million through various employee programs, including 

$840,000 in volunteer grants. 

Economic Development 

Our involvement reaches beyond donating funds to philan- 

thropic causes. The dollars we spend in our communities help 

1 



2003 annual report 25 

stimulate local and national economies. Bell Canada’s 2003 

investments include $2.9 billion in capital expenditures, 

$6 billion in goods and services, $4.2 billion in corporate 

income and sales taxes, and $3 billion in salaries and benefits. 

Some of the projects we support are specifically designed 

to stimulate economic development. For instance, we 

have pledged $1 million over three years to the Bell Canada 

Community Development Fund to help support local 

economic development commissions. 

Workplace 

In 2003, BCE companies employed over 64,000 people. Bell 

Canada’s workforce, including Aliant, was 5 1,000 strong. 

Every year, employees have the opportunity to voice opinions 

in an anonymous, confidential survey. Last year, more than 

41,000 employees from BCE companies participated in the 

sixth annual company-wide survey. Many programs and 

improvements introduced in 2003 were the direct result of 

employee feedback. 

To promote career mobility among Bell companies, we 

launched Bell People First: a commitment to hire, promote 

and train Bell employees before looking externally. This 

program has enabled 540 employees with redundant jobs 

to find new positions within the organization. 

We believe in lifelong learning as a means of empowering 

employees to excel in both their professional and personal 

lives, so we make significant investments in training and 

development. Much of this training was available online, 

anywhere, anytime. At their convenience, Bell employees 

accessed tools like Mentor Match, a computer-based 

mentoring program that matches protkgbs to an appropriate 

mentor from a cross-sectional pool of potential candidates. 

Click n’Learn offers more than 400 online learning solutions. 

More than 60 per cent of Bell course content was delivered 

online, with close to 15,000 Bell employees registering for 

a total of 87,000 online courses. 

A work/life balance is essential for long-term career 

satisfaction. In 2003, we added a number of initiatives to our 

roster of programs that help employees achieve this balance. 

Our new Workforce Flexibility Program lets eligible 

employees take up to one year, with benefits, to pursue a 

variety of activities including education, volunteer work, 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION A N D  ANALYSIS 

MD&A at a glance 
About our business. . . . . . . . . . . .  .29 
The year at a glance . . . . . . . . . . .  .34 
Financial results analysis . . . . . . . .  .36 
Financial and capital 

management . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .45 
Risks that could affect 

our business.. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .51 
Our accounting policies. ......... 59 
Supplementary financial 

information . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .62 

In thls MD&A, we, us, our and 
Bamean BCE lnc., its subsidiaries 
and joint venturer Bell Canada, 
Alht Inc. (Aliant), and their 
subsidiaries are referred to as 
the MI Canada segment. 

A statement we make is forward 

kao#r today to make a statement 
about the future. 

Forward-looking statements may 
indude words such as anticipate, 
bekve, could, expect, goal, intend, 
may, oHective, outlook, plan, seek, 
strive, target and will. 

when it uses what we 

All amounts in this MD&A are 
in millions of Canadian dollars, 
except where otherwise noted. 

Please refer to the audited consoli- 
dated financial statements when 
reading this MD&A. You will find 
m~ information about BCE, including 
BCE Inc.’s Annual Information Form 
ku the year ended December 31, 

(BCE 2003 AIF), on BCE Inc.’s 
website at www.bce.ca and on 
SEDAR at wwwsdmcom. 

We define EBITDA as operating 
revenues less operating expenses, 
which means it represents operating 
income before amortization 
expense, net benefit plans (cost) 
credit, and restructuring and other 
charges. 

This management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations (MD&A) comments 
on BCE’s operations, performance and financial condition for the years ended December 31,2003 and 2002. 

About forward-looking statements 

Securities laws encourage companies to disclose forward-looking information so that investors can get a 
better understanding of the company’s future prospects and make informed investment decisions. 

BCE’s 2003 annual report, including this MD&A, and in particular the outlook sections of this MD&A, 
contain forward-looking statements about BCE’s objectives, strategies, financial condition, results of operations 
and businesses. These statements are “forward-looking” because they are based on our current expectations 
about the markets we operate in, and on various estimates and assumptions. It is important to know that: 

forward-looking statements in BCE’s 2003 annual report, including this MD&A, describe our expecta- 
tions on March 10,2004 
our actual results could be materially different from what we expect if known or unknown risks affect our 
business, or if our estimates or assumptions turn out to be inaccurate. As a result, we cannot guarantee 
that any forward-looking statement will materialize. 
forward-looking statements do not take into account the effect that transactions or non-recurring items 
announced or occurring after the statements are made may have on our business. For example, they do 
not include the effect of sales of assets, monetizations, mergers, acquisitions, other business combinations 
or transactions, asset write-downs or other charges. 
we disclaim any intention and assume no obligation to update any forward-looking statement even if new 
information becomes available, as a result of future events or for any other reason. 

Risks that could cause our actual results to materially differ from our current expectations are discussed 
throughout this MD&A and, in particular, in Risks that could affect our business. 

Non-GAAP financial measures 

EBITDA 
The term, EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization), does not have any stan- 
dardized meaning prescribed by Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). It is therefore 
unlikely to be comparable to similar measures presented by other issuers. EBITDA is presented on a consistent 
basis from period to period. 

We believe that EBITDA is an important measure because it allows us to assess the operating perfor- 
mance of our ongoing businesses without the effects of amortization expense, net benefit plans (cost) credit, 
and restructuring and other charges. We exclude amortization expense and net benefit plans (cost) credit 
because they largely depend on the accounting methods and assumptions a company uses, as well as non- 
operating factors, such as the historical cost of capital assets and the fund performance of a company’s pen- 
sion plans. We exclude restructuring and other charges because they are transitional in nature. 

EBITDA allows us to compare our operating performance on a consistent basis. We believe that certain 
investors and analysts use EBITDA to measure a company’s ability to service debt and to meet other payment 
obligations, or as a common valuation measurement in the telecommunications industry. 

EBITDA should not be confused with net cash flows from operating activities. The most comparable 
Canadian GAAP financial measure is operating income. The table below is a reconciliation of EBITDA to 
operating income on a consolidated and segmented basis. 

Bell Bell BCE BCE Corporate BCE 
Canada Globemedia Emergis Ventures and other Consolidated 

2003 
E8lTDA 7,001 233 15 347 (170) 7,426 

(126) 55 (3,147) 
12 (175) 

Amortization expense (2,970) (60) (46) 

(38) 
Net benefit plans (cost) credit (181) 
Restructuring and other charges (14) 
Operating income (loss) 3,836 167 (69) 221 (103) 4,052 

2002 
EBITDA 7,079 1 ao (29) 287 (162) 7,355 

(2) 33 
Amortization expense (2,894) (67) (58) 

- - (93) (887) 
Net benefit plans (cost) credit 38 (3) 
Restructurina and other charaes (675) (1 19) 

- - 
- - - (52) 

(6) 

(121) 58 (3,082) 
- - 

Ooeratina income (loss) 3.548 110 (206) 166 (199) 3,419 
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This section describes 
BCE’s businesses, objectives 
and strategies. 

ding Telesat Canada 

erta and British Columbia through 

me Fund owns the remaining 37%. 
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MTS is publicly traded. Bell Canada 
owns 22% of MTS. MTS is a signifi- 
cantly influenced investment, which 
we account for under the equity 
method. 

Operating revenues 
byline of business 
r- 

Other Localand 1 
access 

Da 

36% 

5% 

distance 
Long I 
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On February 2, 2004, MTS exercised its option to sell its 40% interest in Bell West to Bell Canada for 
approximately $645 million in cash. The cash is payable at closing, which is expected to occur on or before 
August 3,2004. 

second Price Cap decision (Price Cap decision). This decision mandated price reductions to various services 
and led to lower revenues in the last seven months of 2002 compared to the same period in 2001 and for the 
first five months of 2003 compared to the same period in 2002. In some cases in this MD&A, we presented a 
comparison of our actual reported results, which include the impact of the Price Cap decision on our results 
in the first five months of 2003, as well as a comparison excluding this impact. This is to help you assess our 
performance without the impact of 

The chart shows the operating r 
total operating revenues forth 

In May 2002, the Canadian Radio-television and Telecommunications Commission (CRTC) issued the 

access revenues include: 
value-added services, such as cal 
services provided to competitors 
connections to and from our loca 

cumbent territories are subject to the 
Price Cap decision. 

Long distance services 

this market was ope 
ars. Price decreases 

increased volume in conversation minu 

Wireless services 

roaming services with other wireless service 
PCS services through a monthly rate plan (p 

Columbia, in addition to 
2003, we continued to ex 

to send data at speeds of up to 8 
2003, our high-speed wireless network covered: 

Data services 
High-speed Internet access services provided through digital subscriber line (DSL) technology for residential, 
and small and medium-sized business customers are a growth area for us. We provide high-speed and dial-up 
Internet access to residential customers in our incumbent territories primarily through the Sympatico brand. 

DSL was available to 78% of home and business lines passed in Ontano and Qukbec at the end of 2003, 
up from 75% at the end of 2002. In Atlantic Canada, DSL was available to 65% of homes at the end of 2003 
compared to 60% at the end of 2002. Bell Canada is scheduled to begin installing new low-density DSL 
remotes in neighbourhoods in 2004 to further expand its DSL footprint. 

95% of the population in Ontario and Quibec, which is the same as our analogue coverage in these regions 
60% of the population in Atlantic Canada 
Calgary, Edmonton and Vancouver in Western Canada. 
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In the fourth quarter of 2003, we announced our plans to double the speed of our main consumer DSL 
offering, Sympatico High Speed Edition, to 3 megabits per second (Mbps) from 1.5 Mbps. We also announced 
that we would be increasing the speed for our Ultra customers in early 2004 to 4 Mbps from 3 Mbps. 

We offer a full range of data services to business customers, including local network access, Internet 
access, Internet Protocol (IP)/broadband, managed network solutions, frame relay, asynchronous transfer 
mode (ATM) and e-commerce services, as well as sales of communications and related equipment. In 2004, 
we will start retiring many of our legacy data services, including frame relay and ATM, as we carry out our 
IP strategy. See About our business - Our objectives and strategy for details. 

Our incumbent telephone companies provide data services to business customers in their home territory. 
Bell West provides these services in Western Canada. 

DTH satellite television services 
DTH satellite television services have rapidly become a major competitor to cable television. Bell ExpressVu 
Limited Partnership (Bell ExpressVu) has been delivering digital services directly to Canadian homes and 
businesses since 1997. It is Canada’s largest licensed DTH distributor of digital programming, with more 
than 300 digital television and CD-quality audio channels, more than 60 pay-per-view channels, and unique 
interactive TV services such as Hockey Night in Canada Plus. It is also Canada’s leading provider of high- 
definition television (HDTV) with over 20 HDTV channels. Bell ExpressVu uses two satellites, Nimiq 1 and 
Nimiq 2, which are owned by Telesat. 

In 2003, Bell ExpressVu began expanding into the multiple-dwelling unit (MDU) market in Toronto 
using very high-speed DSL (VDSL). This market represents approximately 40% of all households in Toronto. 

tion and on-screen access to calling features, such as calling-line identification, through one set-top box. 
Signal piracy continues to be a major issue facing all segments of the Canadian broadcasting industry. 

During the year, Bell ExpressVu intensified its ongoing efforts against television signal theft with several new 
initiatives. These included: 

an electronic countermeasure program that transmits electronic signals to disable set-top boxes 
with illegal cards 
the use of new sophisticated set-top box tracking systems and implementation of specific point-of-sale 
practices, such as obtaining customer photo identification and credit card information, and requiring 
customers to pre-register online, to ensure that set-top boxes are being used by legitimate subscribers 
Bell ExpressVu also launched a public awareness campaign about signal theft and its new measures to com- 
bat this industry problem. This included print and TV advertising, as well as letters to existing customers. 

Terminal sales and other 
This category includes revenues from a number of other sources, including: 

wireless handset sales 
wholesale international switched minutes 
network installation for third parties. 

renting, selling and maintaining terminal equipment 

Bell Globemedia 
Bell Globemedia provides information and entertainment services to Canadian customers and access to 
distinctive Canadian content. It includes CTV, Canada’s leading private broadcaster, and The Globe and Mail, 
Canada’s leading national newspaper. 

Bell Globemedia’s revenues mainly come from selling advertising through its TV and print businesses. 
Revenues also come from subscriptions to The Globe and Mail and subscription fees that cable and 
DTH companies pay for carrying Bell Globemedia’s specialty TV channels, such as TSN, RDS and 
Discovery Channel. 

remaining 31.5%. 
BCE Inc. owns 68.5% of Bell Globemedia. The Woodbridge Company Limited and affiliates own the 

BCE Emergis 
BCE Emergis provides eBusiness solutions to the financial services industry in North America and the health 
industry in Canada. It automates transactions between companies and allows them to interact and transact 
electronically. In March 2004, BCE Emergis sold its U.S. Health operations and decided to focus on its core 
competencies in claims, payments, loan processing and related security services. With this sale, we are in a 
better position to assess the future of BCE Emergis, its prospects, and what the best next steps will be for us 
and our shareholders. BCE Emergis is publicly traded. BCE Inc. owns 63.9% of BCE Emergis. 
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See Financial results analysis for 
details about how these business 
dispositions affected our results of 
operations, financial condition and 
cash flows. 

ww.bce.ca 
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Our objectives and strate 

lves from multiple 
itate the introduc- 

s needs while we lay out 

data services are provided 

in IP for the industry and for 

rowth profile and realize on 
s, faster and simpler delivery and 

our market share 

viding connectivity to offering 
nt, wireless data and simplified 
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THE YEAR AT A GLANCE 

This section reviews the key 
measures we use to assess 
our performance and how our 
results in 2003 compare to 
our results in 2002. 

Revenues 
f -  - -- --v 

01 02 03 

Directories 

EBITDA 

I /  36.9% 38.3% 
/- 

39.0% - 1  

01 02 03 

Directories 
EBITDA margin ~- 

ROE (return on common share- 
holders’ equity) is calculated as 
net earnings applicable to common 
shares as a percentage of average 
common shareholders’ equity. 

EPS 

in dollars 2.66 

9 

Customer connections 

Wireless - The total number of cellular and PCS subscribers grew 13.2% or 514,000 to 4,412,000 in 2003 

High-speed Internet - The number of DSL high-speed Internet subscribers grew 34% or 372,000 to 
1,482,000 in 2003. 

DTH satellite television - The number of DTH satellite television service subscribers grew 6.4% or 83,000 
to 1,387,000 in 2003 

lesale data revenue 

operating income i 
Our EBITDA was $ 

uectories business 

have grown 1.5%. 

higher than 2003 mainly 
by restructuring and impairment charges. 

We achieved a return on equity (ROE) of 15.1% in 2003. 

Capital expenditures 

Capital expenditures decl 
expenditures as a percent 

Cash from operating activi 

Communications Inc. 

ratio to 43.8% at December 31, 2003 from 48.4% at December 31,2002. We reduced our net debt by 
$2 billion in 2003. 

(0.29) 

01 02 03 

Gain on sale of directories 
business. other investments 
gainsilosses. impairment and 
restructuring charges 
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Executing on our priorities 

Setting the standard in IP 
The telecommunications industry is currently going through a major transformation as it evolves from 
multiple service-specific networks to IP-based communications. At BCE’s Business Review Conference in 
December 2003, we announced our multi-year plan to lead change in the industry and set the standard in 
the IP world while continuing to deliver on our goals of innovation, simplicity and service, and efficiency. 

and large enterprise customer segments strategies. 

Innovation 
Significant progress was made in 2003 in furthering our innovation goals including: 

We will also continue to focus on our previously announced consumer, small and medium-sized business 

agreement with Microsoft on June 16,2003 to create a co-branded portal and to deliver a unique package 
of leading-edge Microsoft services to customers in the second quarter of 2004 
use of Nortel Networks Corporation (Nortel) IP telephony technology and the creation of a joint 
Bell-Nortel Innovation Centre to accelerate the launch of new IP telephony and multimedia services -~ 
announced on September 8,2003 
agreement with Microsoft on October 9, 2003 to work together to test and deploy standard and HDTV 
channels, on-demand programming and interactivity over Bell Canada’s broadband network through the 
use of Microsoft’s new IPTV technology 
our October 20,2003 announcement that we will be using Lucent Technologies Canada Corp.3 new DSL 
remotes in neighbourhoods to expand the Sympatico high-speed Internet footprint and its IP-based 
piatrorm to evolve our voice messaging services 
our December 16,2003 announcement regarding the purchase of Nortel’s optical network technology to 
accelerate the delivery of IP-based services and the creation of an Optical Innovation Centre to accelerate 
the deployment of new IP-oriented optical solutions 
our showcasing of working demonstrations of Hosted IP telephony and residential VoIP services 
at BCE’s Business Review Conference in December 2003. Hosted IP telephony service for enterprise 
customers is expected to be commercially available in the third quarter of 2004, while residential VoIP 
is currently undergoing technical trials. 
more recently, on January 19,2004, Bell Canada and Cisco Systems Canada (Cisco) announced plans 
to accelerate the creation, commercialization and delivery of a comprehensive suite of IP services that 
will allow large and medium-sized business customers to benefit from an integrated data, voice and video 
IP-based network. As a result of this alliance, Bell Canada will build on its network capability and focus 
its investments towards a single IPLMulti-Protocol Label System (MPLS) service delivery network with 
a national footprint. 

t Simplicity and service 

1 
We made significant progress in simplifying the customer experience in 2003. Initiatives such as Bell Canada’s 
interactive voice-response system Emily, specialized call centre queues, the introduction of One-Bill, and 
reduced provisioning intervals for business high-speed Internet service have improved customer service. In 
addition, the launch of new services, such as Single Number Reach and Business Buck-Up, have made life 
simpler for customers. 

On September 25, 2003, Bell Canada launched The Bell Bundle which combines wireless, Internet 
access and DTH satellite television services into one simple offer for customers taking Bell Canada’s long 

by December 3 1,2003. 
, distance service. Customer response to The Bell Bundle has exceeded expectations with over 70,000 sales 

1 

26.3% 

\ 

01 02 03 

Capital intensity 

Free cash flow 

r-------1 

01 02 03 
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DTH satellite television 
revenues 

01 02 03 

--c Subscribers (000s) 

Bell Globemedia revenues 

01 02 03 

Production and Sundry 
Subscribers 
Advertising 

BCE Emerais revenues 

01 02 03 





40 2003 

Bell Globemedia EBITDA 
.. 

17.1% 
.e 

_/' 

14.0%. ,,' 

..... ..... 

01 02 03 

-e EBITDA margin 

BCE Emergis EBITDA 
.......... -_ 

..-.I ............... E I I 
01 02 03 

Amortization expense 
The amount of our amortization 
expense in any year is affected by: 

how much we invested 
in new capital assets in 
previous years 
how many assets we retired 
during the year 
changes in accounting rules 
and estimates. 
Each year, we review our 

estimate of the useful life of 
our capital assets. 
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Foreign currency gains (losses) 

We recognize foreign currency gains 
on our US. dollar denominated 
debt when the Canadian dollar 
strengthens compared to  the US. 
dollar. We recognize foreign currency 
losses on our US. dollar denomi- 
nated debt when the Canadian 
dollar weakens compared to the 
US. dollar. 

Interest expense 
Our debt structure consists of a 
combination of short-term and 
long-term debt. The interest rate 
on our short-term debt is  usually 
variable. The interest rate on our 
long-term debt is  usually fixed. 

Non-controlling interest 

The non-controlling interest in 
the statements of operations 
reflects the percentage of a 
subsidiary that we do not own 
multiplied by the amount of the 
subsidiary’s after-tax earnings. 



report 



Net debt 

01 02 03 

+ Net debt to capitalization 

Net debt to capitalization ratio 
The net debt to capitalization 
ratio is a key measure that we 
use to assess our financial condi- 
tion. I t  shows how much net debt 
(short-term and long-term debt, 
net of cash) we have in relation 
to our capital (total net debt, non- 
controlling interest and share- 
holders' equity). 



I 
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Free cash flow 
Free cash flow is a key financial 
measure we use to assess our 
performance. It is  derived from 
the statement of cash flows. 

A positive free cash flow 
means that we generated more 
cash from our operations than 
we needed to pay for capital 
expenditures, dividends and other 
investing activities. 

Free cash flow 

01 02 03 

-I ~ Capital intensity 

Capital intensity 
Capital intensity is  capital expen- 
ditures divided by operating rev- 
enues. It is  a key financial measure 
that we use to assess our perfor- 
mance and that of our business units. 

Improving capital intensity i s  a 
key component to  improved free 
cash flow. A positive trend over 
time means that we are becoming 
more efficient in using capital t o  
generate growth in revenue and 
cash flows. 
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Credit ratings 

The interest rates we pay are partly 
based on the quality of our credit 
ratings, all of which were invest- 
ment grade at March I O ,  2004. 
Investment grade ratings usually 
mean that when we borrow money, 
we qualify for lower interest rates 
than companies that have ratings 
lower than investment grade. 

Liquidity 

Our ability to generate cash in the 
short term and in the long term, 
when needed, and to provide for 
planned growth and to fund devel- 
opment activities, depends on our 
sources of liquidity and on our cash 
requirements. 
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RISKS THAT COULD 
AFFECT OUR BUSINESS 

This section describes general risks 
that could affect the BCE group of 
companies and specific risks that 
could affect BCE Inc. and each of 
our business segments. 

A risk i s  the possibility that an 
event might happen in the future 
that could have a negative effect 
on the financial condition, results 
of operations or business of one 
or more BCE companies. Part of 
managing our business is t o  under- 
stand what these potential risks 
could be and to  minimize them 
where we can. 

Because no one can predict 
whether an event will happen or 
i t s  consequences, the actual effect 

be materially different from what 
we currently anticipate. In addition, 
this description of risks does not 
include all possible risks, and there 
may be other risks that we are 
currently not aware of. 
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We operate in markets that 
are experiencing constant techno. 
logical change, evolving industry 
standards, changing client needs, 
frequent new product and service 
introductions, and short product 
life cycles. 
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The BCE 2003 AIF contains a 
detailed description of the principal 
legal proceedings involving BCE 
and certain regulatory initiatives 
and proceedings concerning the 
Bell Canada segment. 

In addition, please refer to 
the discussion under BellCanada 
segment of this section for a 
description of certain regulatory 
initiatives and proceedings that 
could affect the Bell Canada 
segment. 
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Pension fund contributions 
Most of our pension plans had pension fund surpluses as of our most recent actuarial valuation. As a result, 
we have not had to make regular contributions to the pension funds in the past few years. It also means that 
we have reported pension credits, which have had a positive effect on our net earnings. 

The decline in the capital markets in 2001 and 2002, combined with historically low interest rates, 
have significantly reduced the pension fund surpluses and the pension credits. This has negatively affected 
our net earnings. 

Our pension plan assets had higher returns than expected in 2003. There is no assurance that high returns 
will continue. If returns on pension plan assets decline again in the future, the surpluses could also continue 
to decline. If this happens, we might have to start making contributions to the pension funds. This could have 
a material and negative effect on our results of operations. 

Retaining employees 
Our success depends in large part on our ability to attract and retain key employees. 

The exercise price of most of the stock options that our key employees hold is higher than the current 
trading price of BCE Inc.’s common shares. As a result, our stock option programs may not be effective in 
retaining these employees. While we do not expect that we will lose key people, if it happens, this could 
materially hurt our businesses and operating results. 

Renegotiating labour agreements 
The following material collective agreements have expired: 

Approximately 45% of our 
employees are represented 

the collective agreement between Bell Canada and the Communications, Energy and Paperworkers Union 
of Canada (CEP), representing approximately 7,000 craft and services employees 
the collective agreements between Aliant Telecom Inc. (Aliant Telecom), a subsidiary of Aliant, and its 
employees, representing approximately 4,200 employees 
the collective agreements relating to employees of certain divisions and subsidiaries of CTV, representing 
approximately 550 employees 
the collective agreement between Connexim, Limited Partnership and its employees, representing 
approximately 100 craft and services employees. 

The following material collective agreements will expire in 2004: 
the collective agreements between Entourage Technology Solutions Inc. and the CEP, representing 
approximately 2,000 technicians in Ontario and Qukbec, will expire on September 30, 2004 
the collective agreements between certain divisions and subsidiaries of CTV and their employees, 
representing approximately 500 employees, will expire on or before December 31, 2004. 

Renegotiating collective agreements could result in higher labour costs and work disruptions, including 
work stoppages or work slowdowns. Difficulties in renegotiations or other labour unrest could significantly 
hurt our businesses, operating results and financial condition. 

Events affecting our networks 
Network failures could materially hurt our business, including our customer relationships and operating 
results. Our operations depend on how well we protect our networks, our equipment, our applications and 
the information stored in our data centres against damage from fire, natural disaster, power loss, hacking, 
computer viruses, disabling devices, acts of war or terrorism, and other events. Any of these events could 
cause our operations to be shut down indefinitely. 

Our network is connected with the networks of other telecommunications carriers, and we rely on them 
to deliver some of our services. Any of the events mentioned in the previous paragraph, as well as strikes 
or other work disruptions, bankruptcies, technical difficulties or other events affecting the networks of these 
other carriers could also hurt our business, including our customer relationships and operating results. 

by union* and are covered 
by coiiective agreements. 

BCE Inc. 

Holding company structure 
BCE Inc. is a holding company. That means it does not carry on any significant operations and has no major 
sources of income or assets of its own, other than the interests it has in its subsidiaries, joint ventures and 
significantly influenced companies. 

BCE Inc.’s cash flow and its ability to service its debt and to pay dividends on its shares all depend on 
dividends or other distributions it receives from its subsidiaries, joint ventures and significantly influenced 
companies and, in particular, from Bell Canada. BCE Inc.’s subsidiaries, joint ventures and significantly 
influenced companies are separate legal entities. They do not have to pay dividends or make any other 
distributions to BCE Inc. 
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Companies must have a spectrum 
licence to operate cellular, PCS and 
other radio-telecommunications 
systems in Canada. The Minister of 
Industry awards spectrum licences, 
through a variety of methods, a t  
his or her discretion under the 
Radiocommunication Act. 
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Specific risks that could affect Bell Globemedia include its dependence on advertising, the increa 
fragmentation in the television market, contractual arrangements with distributors of specialty television 

4 
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Bell ExpressVu currently uses 
two satellites, Nimiq 1 and 
Nimiq 2, for its DTH satellite 
television services. Telesat 
operates these satellites. 

See the BCE 2003 AIF for a detailed 
description of the specific risks that 
apply to Bel l  Globemedia. 

See the BCE 2003 AIF for a detailed 
description of the specific risks that 
apply to BCE Emergis. 

See the BCE 2003 AIF for a detailed 
description of the specific risks that 
apply to Telesat. 

BCE Emergis 

Specific risks that could affect BCE Emergis include the level of adoption of e-business, and the success 
of its strategic plans and relationships. 

BCE Ventures 

Specific risks that could affect Telesat include: 
launch and in-orbit risks associated with its satellites, including risks of loss, failure, manufacturing 
defects, damage or destruction of these satellites 
Telesat’s ability to obtain insurance coverage for its satellites and, to the extent that it does, its ability to 
receive payment of insurance proceeds for its claims 
the possibility that the delivery of satellites under construction be delayed. 
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Critical accounting estimates 

Under Canadian GAAP, we are required to make estimates when we account for and report assets, liab 
revenues and expenses, and to disclose contingent assets and liabilities in our financial statements. We are 
also required to continually evaluate the estimates that we use. 

circumstances. Because this involves varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty, the amounts currently 
reported in the financial statements could, in the future, prove to be inaccurate. 

statements because they rely heavily on management’s judgment and are based on factors that are highly 
uncertain. 

described in this section with the audit committee of the board of directors. The audit committee has 
reviewed these critical accounting estimates. 

Employee benefit plans 

pension and other retirement benefits. The valuation uses management’s assumptions for the discount rate, 
expected long-term rate of return on plan assets, rate of compensation increase, health-care cost trend and 

We base our estimates on past experience and on other factors that we believe are reasonable under the 

We consider the estimates described in this section to be an important part of understanding our financial 

Our senior management has discussed the development and selection of the critical accounting estimates 

_ _ _  -_ 

%perform a valuation at least every three ye i ixo  determine the acfua6al present value of the accrued 

expected average remaining years of service of employees. 

assumptions could materially affect employee benefit obligations and future net benefit plans costs. 
While we believe that these assumptions are reasonable, differences in actual results or changes in 

loyee benefit plans cost are the 

Because it has over 90% of the total consolidated market value of pension plan assets and total consol- 
idated accrued benefit obligation, Bell Canada is the only operating segment that is significantly affected 
by these assumptions. 

Discount rate 
We determine the appropriate discount rate at the end of every year. Our discount rate was 6.5% at 
December 31,2003, unchanged from 2002 and 2001. The table below shows the impact on the net benefit 
plans cost for 2004 and the accrued benefit asset at December 31,2004 of a 0.5% increase and a 0.5% 
decrease in the discount rate. 

Impact on net benefit 
plans cost for 2004 

Impact on accrued benefit asset 
at December 31, 2004 

Discount rate 
Increased to 7.0% (80) 80 
Decreased to 6.0% 80 (80) 

Although there is no immediate impact on our balance sheet, a lower discount rate results in a higher 
accrued benefit obligation and a lower pension surplus. This means that we may have to increase any cash 
contributions to the plan otherwise required 

Expected long-term rate of return 
We assumed an expected long-term rate of return on plan assets of 7.5% in 2003. We lowered our assumption 
from 8.3% in 2002 because we expect lower long-term rates of return in the financial markets. This change 
increased our net benefit plans cost by about $80 million in 2003. 

Over the long term, the actual rate of return has, on average, been substantially more than the rates we 
assumed. In 2002 and 2001, however, it was substantially less than expected. This resulted in a significant 
accumulated actuarial loss, which negatively affected pre-tax earnings by about $120 million in 2003. 

December 31, 2004 of a 0.5% increase and a 0.5% decrease in the expected rate of return on plan assets. 
The table below shows the impact on the net benefit plans cost for 2004 and the accrued benefit asset at 

Impact on net benefit 
Dlans cost for 2004 

Impact on accrued benefit asset 
at December 31, 2004 

Expected rate of return on plan assets 
Increased to 8.0% 
Decreased to 7.0% 

(65) 
65 

65 
(65) 

Although there is no immediate impact on our balance sheet, poor fund performance results in a lower 
fair value of plan assets and a lower pension surplus. This means that we may have to increase any cash 
contributions to the plan otherwise required. 

OUR ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

We have prepared our consolidated 
financial statements according to 
Canadian GAAP. See Note 1 to the 
consolidated financial statements 
for more information about the 
accounting principles we used to 
prepare our financial statements. 

This section discusses key 
estimates and assumptions that 
management has made under 
these principles and how they 
affect the amounts reported in 
the financial statements and notes. 
It also describes the key changes 
in accounting standards and our 
accounting policies, and how they 
affect our financial statements. 

Employee benefit plans 
We maintain defined benefit plans 
that provide pension, other retire- 
ment and post-employment benefits 
for almost all of our employees. The 
amounts reported in the financial 
statements relating to these bene- 
fits are determined using actuarial 
calculations that are based on 
several assumptions. 

Discount rate 
The discount rate is  the interest 
rate used to determine the present 
value of the future cash flows 
that we expect will be needed to  
settle employee benefit obligations. 
It is usually based on the yield on 
long-term high-quality corporate 
fixed income investments, with 
maturities matching the estimated 
cash flows from the plan. 
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Goodwill impairment 
We assess the value of goodwill 
of all reporting units within each 
of our operating segments every 
year and when events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that it 
might be impaired. 

Contingencies 
We become involved in various 
litigation and regulatory matters 
as a part of our business. Each of 
our operating segments is  affected. 
Pending litigation, regulatory initia- 
tives or regulatory proceedings 
represent potential financial loss 
to  our business. 
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Income taxes 
Management believes that it has adequately provided for income taxes based on all of the information that 
is currently available. The calculation of income taxes in many cases, however, requires significant judgment 
in interpreting tax rules and regulations, which are constantly changing. 

Our tax filings are also subject to audits, which could materially change the amount of current and future 
es. Any change would be recorded as a charge or a credit to income tax 
r receipt would be included in cash from operating activities. 

978 million of future income tax assets and $1,811 million of future income tax liabilities at 
December 31,2003. We recognized an income t 
2002. Before 2003, in computing future income 
to the liability for other retirement and post-employment benefits against the future income tax liability 
relating to pension benefits. In 2003, we stopped netting these two items to better represent the asset and 

$1,136 million in 2003 and $1,538 million in 
we netted the future income tax asset relating 

income taxes, which resulted in an increase of $486 million in future income 
is was the only significant change to our estim 

dards, which consisted of 

earnings over three years 
deferring and amortizing the costs of acquiring wireless subscribers against earnings over the terms 
of the contracts, which are normally up to 24 months 
expensing all other subscriber acquisition costs when services were activated. 

The costs we deferred and amortized consisted mainly of hardware subsidies, net of revenues from 

Effective January 1, 2003, we changed our accounting method and started expensing all subscriber 
the sale of wireless handsets. 

ts when services are activated. We also started presenting the revenues generated from the 
s handsets instead of netting them against operating expenses. 

, we restated the comparative figures for 2002 and 2001: 
95 million in 2002 and $183 million in 200 1 

creased by $275 million in 2002 and $332 million in 2001 
income taxes decreased by $32 million in 2002 and $60 million in 2001 
non-controlling interest decreased by $7 million in 2002 and $11 million in 2001 
net earnings decreased by $41 million in 2002 and $78 million in 2001. 

At December 3 1, 2002, this resulted in: 
a decrease of $133 million in other current assets 
a decrease of $339 million in other long-term assets 

a decrease of $189 ilities 
an increase of $15 

Impairment of long-lived assets 
Effective January 1,2004, we adopted s 
Adopting this section will affect how we recognize, measure and disclose the impairment of long-lived assets. 
The section is effective for years beginning on or after April 1, 2003. 

An impairment loss is recognized on a long-lived asset to be held and used when its carrying value 
exceeds the total undiscounted cash flows expected from its use and disposition. 

Before January 1,2004, the amount of the loss was determined by deducting the asset’s net recoverable 
amount (based on undiscounted cash flows expected from its use and disposition) from its carrying value. 

After January 1, 2004, the amount of the loss is determined by deducting the asset’s fair value (based 
on discounted cash flows expec s use and disposition) 

on 3063 of the CICA Handbook, Impainnent of long-lived assets. 
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Asset retirement obligations 
Effective January 1, 2004, we adopted section 31 10 of the CICA Handbook, Asset retirement obligations. 

. The asset retir 

these characteristics, a 
financial statements. 

SUPPLEMENTARY 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Goodwill amortization 

Total assets 
Long-term debt (including current portion) 
Preferred shares 
Common shareholders' equity 
Capital expenditures 
Share data 
Net earnings per common share 

Continuing operations - basic 
Continuing operations - diluted 
Net earnings - basic 
Net earnings - diluted 

Dividends declared per common share 
Dividends declared on common shares 
Dividends declared on oreferred shares 

39,331 39,106 
13. 
1, 

11, 
(3, 

1.93 2.00 
1.92 1.98 
1.90 2 66 
1.89 2.62 
1.20 1.20 
1,105 1,031 

64 59 

53. 50,903 
11, 14,105 
1. 1,300 

15, 15,839 
(4,945) (3,627) 

4.43 1.21 
4.38 1.17 
0.46 7.40 
0.46 6.84 
1.20 1.24 
969 849 
64 79 

36,474 
9,862 
1,700 
16,026 
(2,862) 

8.29 
8.08 
8.16 
7.96 
1.36 
875 
93 

Other data 
Number of employees (thousands)-unaudited 64 64 73 73 55 
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The factors that have caused our results to vary over the past two years are discussed throughout 
this MD&A. 

In 2001, our net earnings included a gain of $2.9 billion on the settling of short-term forward contracts 
on approximately 47.9 million Nortel common shares and selling the same number of Nortel common shares, 
dilution gains of $265 million from the reduction of our ownership interest in CGI, Aliant and BCE Emergis, 
restructuring and other charges of $461 million at Bell Canada (relating to streamlining initiatives and the 
write-down of certain Bell Mobility capital assets), and an impairment charge of $2,049 million recorded by 
Teleglobe relating to its investment in the Excel Communications group. Our results also included $971 mil- 
lion of goodwill amortization. Goodwill is no longer amortized effective January l ,  2002. 

Quarterly financial information 

The table below shows selected consolidated financial data for each quarter of 2003 and 2002. This 
quarterly information has been prepared on the same basis as the annual consolidated financial statements, 
but it is unaudited. 

2003 2002 

Q4 Q3 Q2 Ql Q4 03 Q2 Ql 
Operating revenues 4,910 4,702 4,748 4,696 5,045 4,677 4,797 4,667 
EBITDA 1,854 1,899 1,900 1,773 1,807 1,885 1,899 1,764 
Operating income 971 1,041 1,071 969 647 1,058 702 1,012 
Earnings from continuing operations 458 458 465 464 793 353 291 341 

!*"I " a 2 I 2  I i  \LI I )  v 11 
Net earnings 400 464 478 473 1,712 365 20 310 
Net earnings applicable to common shares 386 446 461 451 1,696 349 6 291 
Included in net earnings: 

and dilution gains 

,Cob n 

Net gains on sale of investments 

- - - Continuing operations 84 1,230 12 1 1 1  - 

- - (251) (37) (216) - 
Discontinued operations (73) 8 

(527) 
Restructuring and other charges (30) 6 
Impairment charge - - - 

Continuing operations - basic 0.48 0.48 0.49 0.48 0.87 0.39 0.34 0.40 
Continuing operations - diluted 0.48 0.47 0.49 0.48 0.86 0.39 0.34 0.39 
Net earnings - basic 0.41 0.49 0.50 0.50 1.88 0.40 0.01 0.37 
Net earnings - diluted 0.41 0.48 0.50 0.50 1.85 0.40 0.01 0.36 

outstandina (millions) 923.4 921.5 919.3 917.1 909.1 864.0 808.7 808.6 

- - 91 I - (253) - 

- - - - 
Net earnings per common share 

Average number of common shares 

The factors that have caused our results to vary over the past eight quarters are discussed throughout 
this MD&A. 

, 
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This section of our annual report 
contains the audited consolidated 
financial statements of BCE and 
detailed notes with explanations 
and additional information. 

8Q consists of many business%& 
includkig subsidiaries, joint vemtwes 
and investments in significantly 
inRuenced companies. We present 
the financial information for all of 
our holdings as one "consolidated" 
company. 

- 

Except in the auditors' report, 
we, us, our and BCE mean BCE Inc., 
its subsidiaries and joint ventures. 

www.bce.ca 

C 0 N S 0 L I DAT E D F I N A N  C I A L STAT EM EN TS 

The financial statements contain our results and financial history for the past three years. The notes are 
an important part of understanding our financial results. They explain how we arrived at the numbers in the 
financial statements, describe significant events or changes that affect the numbers, and explain certain items 
in the financial statements. They also include details about our financial results that are not shown in the 
financial statements. 

Management's report 

These financial statements form the basis for all of the financial information that appears in this annual report. 
The financial statements and all of the information in this annual report are the responsibility of the man- 

agement of BCE Inc. and have been reviewed and approved by the board of directors. The board of directors 
is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its financial reporting responsibilities. Deloitte & Touche 
LLP, the shareholders' auditors, have audited the financial statements. 

Management has prepared the financial statements according to Canadian generally accepted accounting 
principles. Under these principles, management has made certain estimates and assumptions that are reflected 
in the financial statements and notes. Management believes that these financial statements fairly present 
BCE's consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows. 

Management has a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements are accurate and complete in all material respects. This is supported by an internal audit group that 
reports to the audit committee, and includes communication to employees about policies for ethical business 
conduct. Management believes that the internal controls provide reasonable assurance that our financial 
records are reliable and form a proper basis for preparing the financial statements, and that our assets are 
properly accounted for and safeguarded. 

directors. The audit committee's responsibilities include reviewing the financial statements and other infor- 
mation in this annual report, and recommending them to the board of directors for approval. You will find 
a description of the audit committee's other responsibilities on page 104 of this annual report. The internal 
auditors and the shareholders' auditors have free and independent access to the audit committee. 

The board of directors has appointed an audit committee, which is made up of unrelated and independent 

Michael'J. Sabia Siim A. Vanaselja 
President and Chief Financial Officer 
Chief Executive Officer 
March 10, 2004 

Karyn A. Brooks 
Vice-president and 
Corporate Controller 

Auditors' report 

To the shareholders of BCE Inc.: 
We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of BCE Inc. as at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the 
consolidated statements of operations, (deficit) retained earnings and cash flows for each of the years in the 
three-year period ended December 3 1, 2003. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility 
of BCE Inc.'s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial 
statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence support- 
ing the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. 

position of BCE Inc. as at December 31,2003 and 2002 and the results of its operations and its cash flows 
for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,2003, in accordance with Canadian generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

Deloitte & Touche LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
MontrCal, Canada 
March 10,2004 



www. bce. ca 2003 annual report 65 

C O N  S O L I  DATED STATEM E NTS OF 0 P E RAT1 0 N S 

Notes 2003 2002 2001 For the year ended December 31 (in 0 millions, except share amounts) 

Operating income 

1.66 
Diluted 1.64 

s - Preferred share 
- Common shares (1,105) (1,031) 
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C O N S O L I D A T E D  B A L A N C E  S H E E T S  

ASSETS 

ehalf of the board of 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS O F  CASH FLOWS 

i 
L 

I 

c 

b . 
5 

c 
r 

! 

For the year ended December 31 fin 0 millions) 2003 2002 2001 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Earnings from continuing operations 1,845 1,778 3,646 
Adjustments to reconcile earnings f 

to cash flows from operating ac 
Amortization expense 3,147 3,082 3,517 

Restructuring and other charges (non-cash portion) 44 805 915 
Impairment charge - 765 - 
Net gains on investments (76) (2,414) (4,063) 
Future income taxes 433 518 73 
Non-controlling interest 191 602 289 
Contributions to employee pension plans (1 60) (21) (17) 
Other employee future benefit plan payments (87) (76) (73) 
Other items (90) (12) (175) 
Changes in non-cash working capital 593 (616) 20 1 

Net benefit plans cost (credit) 175 (33) (121) 

-__ ~ __ , 

Capital expenditures (3,179) (3,731) (4,945) 
Business acquisitions (119) (6,471) (352) 

55 3,190 248 

64 13 (97) 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Decrease in notes payable and bank advances (295) (213) (2,738) 
Issue of long-term debt 1,986 4,908 2,443 
Repayment of long-term debt (3,515) (2,720) (1,238) 
Issue of common shares 19 2,693 71 
Costs relating to the issuance of common shares 
Issue of preferred shares 
Redemption of common and preferred shares 
Issue of equity securities and convertible debentures 

by subsidiaries to non-controlling interest 
of equity securities by su 
ds paid on common and 

Cash dividends paid by subsidiaries to non-controlling interest 
Other items 

Cash provided by continuing operations 52 626 1,516 
Cash provided by (used in) discontinued operations 364 (889) (1,207) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 416 (263) 309 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 306 569 260 

Cash and cash equivalents at  end of year 722 306 569 

114 263 9 
8 43 560 

Total 722 306 569 
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES 

All amounts are in millions 
of Canadian dollars, except 
where noted. 

See Note 26, Reconciliation of 
Canadian GAAP to United States 
GAAFfor a description and 
reconciliation of the significant 
differences between Canadian 
GAAP and United States GAAP 
that affect our financial statements. 

www.bce.ca 

A T E D  F I N A N C I A L  

Basis of presentation 

s we control. We proportionate 
All transactions and balances 

Using estimates 

When preparing financial stat 
relating to: 

reported amounts of revenues 

ates and assumptions 

disclosure of contingent assets a 

Actual results could be different from these estimates. 

Recognizing revenue 
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NOTES TO C O N S O L I D A T E D  F I N A N C I A L  STATEMENTS 

When a transaction involves more than one product or service, we allocate revenue to each based 
on its relative fair value. 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (continued) 

base them on past experience. 

ets 

cauital assets at cost. less ac lated amortization. Most of our cauital assets are amortized using - 
the composi 
charge their 

depreciation method. When we retire assets 
cost to accumulated amortization. In genera 

e ordinary course of business, we 
amortize capital assets on a straight- 

line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. We review the estimate of the useful lives of the assets 
every year and adjust it, if needed. 

Software 3 to 7 years 
Customer relationships 5 to 40 years 

We capitalize construction costs, labour and overhead related to our self-constructed assets. 
We capitalize certain costs incurred for developing or obtaining internal-use software. We expense soft- 

ware maintenance and training costs when they are incurred. The expense is included in Operating expenses 

and credit loss 
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (continued) 

Significantly influenced 
It means that: 

we have a 20% to 50% equity 
interest in a company that 
we do not control or jointly 
control, and 
we have a significant influence 
on i t s  operating, investing and 
financing activities. 

Equity method 
An investment is  initially recorded 
at cost, and adjustments are made 
to include our share of the invest- 
ment's net earnings or losses. These 
adjustments are included in our net 
earnings. The amount of our invest- 
ment is  reduced by the amount of 
dividends received or receivable 
from the investment. 

Cost method 

The investment is  recorded at cost. 
Dividends received or receivable 
from the investment are included in 
our net earnings. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill is  created when we 
acquire a business. It i s  calculated 
by deducting the fair value of 
the net assets acquired from the 
amount paid. It represents the 
value of factors that contribute to 
a greater earning power, such as a 
good reputation, customer loyalty 
or intellectual capital. 

Translation of foreign currencies 
The way we account for a 
foreign operation depends on 
whether it is  self-sustaining or 
integrated. A self-sustaining 
foreign operation i s  largely inde- 
pendent of the parent company. 
An integrated foreign operation 
depends on the parent company 
to finance or run i ts  operations. 

fair value (based o 
value. This amoun 

We assess goodwill 
events or changes in 

fair value of the rep0 
and liabilities, based 

Translation of foreign 

the exchange rates i 
the average exchan 

Translation exc 
equity. When we re 

ivable and payable, and long-term debt 
exchange rates for non-monetary assets and liabilities, such as capital assets 

Translation exchange gains and losses are included in Other income in the statement of operations. 
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Domestic transactions and balances in foreign currencies 
For domestic transactions made in foreign currencies, we use: 

the exchange rates on the date of the balance sheet for monetary assets and liabilities 
the average exchange rates during the year for revenues and expenses. 

Translation exchange gains and losses are included in Other income in the statement of operations. 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (continued) 

Derivative financial instruments 

We use various derivative financial instruments to hedge against: 
interest rate risk 
foreign exchange rate risk 
changes in the price of BCE Inc. common shares relating to special compensation payments (SCPs). 

We expect that the derivatives we use will generate enough cash flows and gains or incur losses to offset 

-~ ~ _ _  Wedocument all relationships between derivatives and the itemslhey -andourrisk m a n a g e  ~ 

a specific asset or liability on the balance sheet, or 
a specific net investment in self-sustaining foreign operations, or 
a specific firm commitment, or 

these risks. We do not use derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes. 

objective and strategy for using various hedges. This process includes linking every derivative to: 

an anticipated transaction. 

basis. If a hedge is no longer effective, we will stop using hedge accounting. 
We follow these policies when accounting for derivatives: 
deferred gains or losses relating to derivatives that qualify for hedge accounting are recognized in earnings 
when the hedged item is sold or the anticipated transaction is ended early 
gains and losses related to hedges of anticipated transactions are recognized in earnings or are recorded 
as adjustments of carrying values when the transaction takes place 
derivatives that are economic hedges, but do not qualify for hedge accounting, are recognized at fair 
value. We record the change in fair value in earnings. 
any premiums paid for financial instrument contracts are deferred and expensed to earnings over the term 
of the contract 
any forward premiums or discounts on forward foreign exchange contracts that are used to hedge long- 
term debt that is denominated in foreign currencies are amortized as an adjustment to interest expense 
over the term of the forward contract. 

The following describes our policies for specific kinds of derivatives. 

Interest rate swap agreements 
We use interest rate swap agreements to help manage the fixed and floating interest rate mix of our total 
debt portfolio. These agreements often involve exchanging interest payments without exchanging the notional 
principal amount that the payments are based on. We record the exchange of payments as an adjustment of 
interest expense on the hedged debt. We include the related amount payable or receivable from counterparties 
as an adjustment to Other long-term assets or liabilities. 

Foreign currency swap agreements 
We use foreign currency swap agreements to manage the exchange rate exposure of some of our debt that 
is denominated in foreign currencies. We designate these agreements as hedges of firm commitments to pay 
interest and principal on the foreign currency risk. We recognize gains and losses on these contracts the same 
way we recognize the gains and losses on the hedged item. Unrealized gains or losses are included in Other 
long-term assets or liabilities. 

Forward contracts 
We use forward contracts to manage: 

the exchange rate exposure of some of our debt that is denominated in foreign currencies. We designate 
these agreements as hedges of firm commitments to pay the principal on the foreign currency risk. 
the exposure to anticipated forecasted transactions denominated in foreign currencies. We designate 
these agreements as hedges of the future cash flows. 
changes in price of BCE Inc. common shares relating to SCPs. 

We recognize gains and losses on these contracts the same way we recognize the gains and losses on 
the hedged item. Unrealized gains or losses are included in Other long-term assets or liabilities. 



72 2003 annual report 

J . J 1  

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (continued) 

Curtailment 
A curtailment i s  a significant reduc- 
tion in plan benefits that can result 
when a defined benefit pension 
plan i s  amended or restructured. 
Types of curtailments include: 

a reduction in the expected 
number of years of future 
service of active employees 
the elimination of the right 
to earn defined benefits for 
some or all of the future 
service of employees. 

Settlement 
A company makes a settlement 
when it substantially settles all 
or part of an accrued benefit 
obligation. An example is  a lump- 
sum cash payment to employees 
in exchange for their rights to 
receive future benefits. 

Tax laws 
A tax law is  substantively 
enacted when it has been tabled 
in the legislature but may not 
have been passed into law. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Stock-based compensation plans 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 

by measuring the compensation cost of options using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. This method 
was used for options granted on or after January 1, 2002. 

Recent changes to accounting standards and policies 

The Black-Scholes option pricing 
model is a financial model we use 
to calculate the weighted-average 
fair value of a stock option granted 
using four key assumptions: stock 
dividend yield, expected stock 
volatility, risk-free interest rate and 

ill impairment charge 
dwill and other int 
at January 1,2002 t expected life of the stock option. 

sh or other assets. 

d method for all other awards granted 
Awards that are required to be, or are 

- 

the costs of acquiring DTH satellite television service subscribers against 
1 
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
gOLlClES (continued) 

NOTE 
SEGMENTED I N FOR MATI 0 N 
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SEGMENTED INFORMATION 
(continued) 

The accounting policies of the 
segments are the same as those 
we describe in Note 1, Significant 
accounting policies. Segments 
negotiate sales between each other 
as if they were unrelated parties. 

We measure the profitability 
of each segment based on i t s  
contribution to consolidated net 
earnings. 

Our operations, including most 
of our revenues, capital assets and 
goodwill, are located in Canada. 
Effective January 1, 2003, the results 
of Bell Canada Holdings Inc. (BCH), 
Bell Canada's holding company, 
are classified under Corporate 
and other: They were previously 
classified under Bell Canada. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

CGl’s acquisition of Cognicase Inc. (Cognicase) 
CGI acquired 100% of the outstanding common shares of Cognicase in the first quarter of 2003. It issued 
Class A subordinate shares to pay for part of the purchase price, which reduced BCE’s equity interest in CGI BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS 

AND DISPOSITIONS 

cluding $34 million in c 
the sale, Bell Canada ex 

be reduced as Bell Canada 

nite-life intangibles 
anmc er relationships, which are classified as capital assets 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED F INANCIAL STATEMENTS 

BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS 
A N D  DISPOSITIONS 
(continued) 

See Note 5, Otherincome, for 
more information about the sale 
of the directories business. 

MTS is publicly traded. Bell Canada 
owns 22% of MTS. MTS is  a 
significantly influenced investment, 
which we account for under the 
equity method. 

Sale of the directories business 
On November 29, 2002, we sold our print and electronic directories business for approximately $3 billion 
($2.8 billion net of selling costs and after the acquisition of an approximate 10% interest in the acquisition 
vehicle) in cash. The net carrying value of the net assets of the directories business was $518 million at the 

The directories business had total assets of $390 million, including $52 
, and total liabilities of $90 million. We recorded a pre-tax gain of $2.3 
18 million of goodwill to the sale. 

RESTRUCTURING AND 
OTHER CHARGES 

ational structure. Th 

de severance an 

Bell Canada charges 
In 2003, Bell Canada recorded other charges of $65 million relating to various asset write-downs and other 
provisions. These charges were offset by a credit of $66 million relating to the reversal of the restructuring 
charges recorded in 2002, which were no longer necessary because fewer employees were terminated than 
expected. This was due to an increased redeployment of employees within Bell Canada. 



www.bce.ca 2003 annual report 79 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2002 

Streamlining and other charges at Bell Canada 
Bell Canada recorded a pre-tax charge of $302 million in the fourth quarter of 2002 ($190 million after 
taxes). This included restructuring charges of $232 million and other charges of $70 million. 

The restructuring charges were mainly from streamlining Bell Canada’s management, line and other 
support functions. They included severance for approximately 1,700 employees, enhanced pension benefits 
and other employee costs. The restructuring was largely complete in 2003. 

ments and unreconciled balances from previous years that were identified in 2002. 

Write-off of deferred costs 
BCE Inc. recorded a pre-tax charge of $93 million ($61 million after taxes) in the fourth quarter of 2002. 
This represented a write-off of deferred costs relating to various convergence initiatives after an analysis 
indicated that it was unlikely that these costs would be recovered. 

Pay equity settlement 
On September 25,2002, the members of the Canadian Telecommunications Employees’ Association (CTEA) 
ratified a settlement reached between the CTEA and Bell Canada relating to the 1994 pay equity complaints 
that the CTEA had filed on behalf of its members before the Canadian Human Rights Commission. The set- 
tlement included a cash payout of $128 million and related pension benefits of approximately $50 million. 

As a result of the settlement, Bell Canada recorded a charge of $79 million in the third quarter of 2002 
($37 million after taxes and non-controlling interest). The charge is equal to the $128 million cash payout, 
less a previously recorded provision. We are deferring and amortizing the related pension benefits into 

RESTRUCTURING AND 
OTHER CHARGES 
(continued) 

Other charges consisted mainly of various accounts receivable write-downs relating to billing adjust- 

earnings over the estimated average remaining service life of active employees and the estimated average 
remaining life of retired employees. 

Write-down of Bell Canada’s accounts receivable 
At the same time it was developing its new bi 
method for analysing receivables by customer and by service line. This method allows it to more accu- 
rately determine the validity of amounts that customers owe to Bell Canada. 

The analysis indicated that a write-down of accounts receivable of $272 million ($142 million after 
taxes and non-controlling interest) was appropriate at June 30, 2002. 

Because these amounts came from legacy billing systems and processes, Bell Canada carried out a 
detailed review of billings and adjustments for the period from 1997 to 2002. It determined that these 
amounts were the cumulative result of a series of individually immaterial events and transactions relating 
to its legacy accounts receivable systems dating back to the early 1990s. 

Streamlining and other charges at BCE Emergis 
BCE Emergis recorded a pre-tax charge of $1 19 million in the second quarter of 2002 ($63 million after 
taxes and non-controlling interest). This included restructuring charges of $95 million and other charges 
of $24 million. 

All of these charges were mainly from streamlining BCE Emergis’ services and reducing its operating 
costs. They consisted of the write-off of certain assets, severance and other employee costs, contract settle- 
ments and costs of leased properties no longer in use. The charges were reduced by the proceeds of dispo- 
sition of certain exited activities. The restructuring was complete in 2003. 

g system, Bell Canada adopted a new and more precise 

2001 

Streamlining and other charges at Bell Canada 
Bell Canada recorded a total of $975 million in pre-tax charges in the first and fourth quarters of 2001 
($461 million after taxes and non-controlling interest). This included restructuring charges of $555 million 
and other charges of $420 million. 

The restructuring charges were from Bell Canada’s streamlining initiatives and included employee 
severance for approximately 4,700 employees, enhanced pension benefits and other employee costs. The 
restructuring was complete in 2002. 

its analogue networks, paging networks and personal communications service (PCS) base stations. 
Other charges consisted of the write-down of Bell Mobility Inc.’s wireless capital assets, in particular, 
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OTHER INCOME 

IMPAIRMENT CHARGE 

INTEREST EXPENSE 

INCOME TAXES 

www.bce.ca 

N O T E S  TO C O N S O L I D A T E D  F I N A N C I A L  STATE 

Net gains on investments 
Interest income 
Foreign currency gains (losses) 

core businesses. M 

which led to lower 

Interest expense on Io 

Income taxes co 

Net gains on disposal of investments 
Difference between Canadian statutory rates and those applicable to subsidiaries 
Large corporations tax 46 28 31 
Goodwill amortization - - 20 1 

Other (14) a i  107 

Total income tax expense 1,136 1,583 1,696 

Goodwill impairment - 289 - 
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The table below shows the significant components of income tax expense relating to earnings from 
continuing operations. 

INCOME TAXES 
2003 2002 (continued) 

Current income taxes 703 1,065 1,623 
Future income taxes 

425 333 

The table below 
amounts of asse 

197 119 

in non-capital loss carryforwards. We: 

s on approximately $107 million of 

forwards, all of which can be 

) DISCO NTI N U E D 0 PE RAT1 0 N S 
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 
(continued) 

Teleglobe provided international 
voice and data telecommunications 
services. It also provided retail 
telecommunications services 
through i t s  investment in the 
Excel Communications group until 
the second quarter of 2002. These 
services included long distance, 
paging and Internet services to 
residential and business customers 
in North America. 

BCI developed and operated 
communications companies in 
markets outside Canada, with 
a focus on Latin America, until 
July 2002 when it sold i t s  interest 
in Telecom Americas Ltd. BCI held 
most of i t s  investments through 
Telecom Americas Ltd. 

Aliant's emerging business segment 
consisted mainly of Aliant's invest- 
ments in iMagicTV Inc., Prexar LLC 
and AMI Offshore Inc. iMagicTV Inc. 
is  a software development com- 
pany that provides broadband TV 
software and solutions to service 
providers around the world. Prexar 
LLC is an Internet services provider. 
AMI Offshore Inc. provides process 
and systems control technical ser- 
vices, and contracts manufacturing 
solutions to offshore oil and gas 
and other industries. 

Aliant's remote communications 
segment consisted of Aliant's 
53.2% investment in Stratos. 
Stratos offers Internet Protocol (IP), 
data and voice access services 
through a range of newly emerging 
and established technologies, 
including satellite and microwave, 
to  customers in remote locations. 

Teleglobe 

Effective April 24, 2002, we started presenting the financial results of Teleglobe as discontinued operations. 
They were previously presented in the BCE Teleglobe segment. 

forwards that were applied against the taxes payable relating to Bell Canada's sale of a 3.66% interest in the 
directories business and Aliant's sale of Stratos. Otherwise, the tax benefit associated with the remaining 
unused capital losses has not been reflected in the financial statements. 

We recorded a loss of $73 million in the second quarter of 2002 for the write-down of our interest in 
Teleglobe to its net realizable value, which we determined to be zero. This loss was in addition to the transi- 

The net gain of $39 million in the fourth quarter of 2003 relates mainly to the use available loss carry- 

will impairment charge of $7,516 
required by section 3062 of the C 

Effective June 30,2002, 
investment in BCI at cost. We 
of the investment to our estim 

Effective December 2003, we s 
segment as discontinued operat 

$52 million in cash and cash equivalents, and total liabilities of $372 million. The transaction resulted in a 
gain on sale of $105 million ($48 million after taxes and non-controlling interest). 
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BCE Emergis‘ US. Heal th  opera t ions  (US Health) 

Effective December 2003, we started presenting the financial results of US Health as discontinued operations. 
They were previously presented in the BCE Emergis segment. 

In December 2003, BCE Emergis’ board of directors approved the sale of US Health for a total of 
U.S.$213 million in cash. The total price is subject to adjustments set out in the purchase agreement. BCE 
Emergis sold US Health in March 2004. 

The sale excluded BCE Emergis’ National Health Services Inc. subsidiary (NHS), which runs care 
management operations in the United States. BCE Emergis sold NHS in a separate transaction in March 2004 
for a total of U.S.$lO million in cash. 

of $254 million (including $9 million in cash and cash equivalents) and total liab 
on the transaction was $87 mllion ($160 million after non-controlling interest and BCE Inc.’s incremental 
goodwill in US Health), which was recorded in December 2003. 

At December 31, 2003, the carrying value of US Health’s net assets was $247 million. It had total assets 
es of $7 million. The loss 

The table below is a reconciliation of the numerator and the denominator used in the calculation of basic 
and diluted earnings per common share from continuing operations. 

Earnings from continuing operations (numerator) 

Premium on redemption of preferred shares - 
Earnings from continuing operations - basic 1.774 1,713 3,582 
Assumed exercise of put options by CGI shareholders (1) 

Earnings from continuing operations - diluted 1,774 1,725 3,584 

Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding - basic 920.3 847.9 807.9 
Assumed exercise of stock options (2) 1.6 2.0 4.4 
Assumed exercise of put options by CGI shareholders (1) - 13.0 5.6 
Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding - diluted 921.9 862.9 817.9 

- 12 2 

Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding (denominator) (in millions) 

(1) See Note 23, Commitments and Contmgenaes, for information about the cancellation of the put options with CGI shareholders. 
(2) The calculation of the assumed exercise of stock options includes the effect of the average unrecognized future compensation cost 

of dilutive options. It excludes all anti-dilutive options. These are options that would not be exercised because their exercise price is 
higher than the average market value of a BCE Inc. common share for each of the periods shown in the table. If we included them, 
they would cause our diluted earnings per share to be overstated. The number of excluded options was 22,176,302 in 2003, 
20,770,155 in 2002 and 13,185,622 in 2001 

2003 2002 2001 

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 
(continued) 

US Health operates cost contain- 
ment networks (shared savings 
and preferred provider organiza- 
tions) that  process medical claims 
for health care payers, including 
insurance companies and self- 
insured entities. 

EARNINGS PER SHARE 

2003 2002 

Trade accounts receivable 2,116 2.183 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE Other accounts receivable 192 
Allowance for doubtful accounts (231) (1 66) 

2.077 2,181 

Secur i t izat ion of accounts receivable 

Bell Canada sold an interest in a pool of accounts receivable to a securitization trust for a total of $900 million 
in cash, under a revolving sales agreement that came into effect on December 12, 2001. The agreement expires 
on December 12,2006. Bell Canada had a retained interest of $128 million in that pool of accounts receivable 
at December 3 1,2003. This is equal to the amount of overcollateralization in the receivables transferred. 

Aliant sold an interest in a pool of accounts receivable to a securitization trust for a total of $130 million 
in cash, under a revolving sales agreement that came into effect on December 13, 2001. The agreement 
expires on December 13,2006. Aliant had a retained interest of $29 million in that pool of accounts receivable 
at December 3 1, 2003. 
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Notes 2003 2002 

Accrued benefit asset 22 1,728 2,070 
Future income taxes 8 781 617 
investments at equity 496  488 
investments at cost 263 207 
Long-term notes and other receivables 95  151 
Deferred debt issuance costs 9 2  95 
Deferred development costs 11 34 
Other 84 127 

3,550 3,789 

The amount of Investments at equity includes goodwill of $199 million at December 31,2003 and 
$207 million at December 31, 2002. Amortization of deferred charges was $14 million in 2003, $39 million 
in 2002 and $49 million in 2 

Note 2003 
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OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS 

INDEFINITE-LIFE 
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

reallocated to other net assets 

BCE Inc. Series P retractable oreferred shares 18 351  - 

within one year wit 
e credit agreements 

g capital assets and paying 

GOODWILL 

DEBT DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR 
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LONG-TERM DEBT 

Weighted-average 
Notes interest rate Maturity 2003 2002 

BCE Inc. 
Notes (a) 6.86% 2006-2009 2,000 2,000 
Notes payable to SBC - 314 

Total - BCE Inc. 2,000 2,314 

Bell Canada 
Debentures and notes (b) 7.36% 2004-2054 8,789 9,609 
Subordinated debentures 8.21% 2026-2031 275 215 
Capital leases (c) 5.92% 2004-201 5 471 421 
Other 212 219 

otes and bonds (4 

Bell Canada 
(b) All debentures and notes are unsecured. They incl 

which have been swapped into Canadian dollars. 
of the principal amounts when certain premiums 
debentures at 101 % of the principal amount. The 
interest rate of 9.45%. 

into Canadian dollar obligations. 

(4 All debentures and notes d. The bonds ($185 million i 
trust and mortgage, and b 

future property of Aliant Tele 
Bell Globemedia 
(4 Assets of CTV and one of its ies, CTV Specialty Television Inc. (CTV Spe 

through swap agreements on $95 million of bank debt. 
Restrictions 
Certain debt agreements: 

require us to meet specific financial ratios 
impose covenants, maintenance tests and new issue tests 
restrict the payment of dividends 
restrict how we can dispose of Bell Canada voting shares 

We are in compliance with all conditions and restrictions. 
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Notes 2003 2002 

Future income taxes 8 1,798 625 
Accrued benefit liability 22 1,383 1,377 

Deferred contract payments 23 301 - 
CRTC benefits packages 130 187 

355 
Other 729 668 
Total other long-term liabilities 4,699 3,650 

(a) At December 31, 2003, 14.1 million shares were outstanding (14.2 million shares at December 31,2002). The annual dividend rate 

Deferred revenue and gains on assets 358 438 

BCE Inc Series P retractable preferred shares (a) - 

was $1.60 per share. The dividend payments are classified as interest expense in the statements of operations On December 8, 2003, 
BCE Inc announced that it would redeem all of its outstanding Series P retractable preferred shares for approximately $351 million, 
which it did on January 15,2004.A~ a result, the amount outstanding at December 31,2003 is presented as debt due within one year. 

OTHER LONG-TERM 
LIABILITIES 

Using derivatives 

We periodically use derivative instruments to manage our exposure to interest rate risk, foreign currency risk 
and changes in the price of BCE Inc. common shares. We do not use derivative instruments for speculative 
purposes. Because we do not trade actively in derivative instruments, we are not exposed to any significant 
liquidity risks relating to them. 

The following derivative instruments were outstanding at December 3 1,2003: 
cross-currency swaps, interest rate swaps and forward contracts that hedge foreign currency risk on a 
portion of our long-term debt 
forward contracts on BCE Inc. common shares that hedge the fair value exposure related to SCPs. 

Credit risk 
We are exposed to credit risk if counterparties to our derivative instruments are unable to meet their obliga- 
tions. We expect that they will be able to meet their obligations because we deal only with highly rated 
institutions that have strong credit ratings and we regularly monitor our credit risk and credit exposure. 

There was no credit risk relating to derivative instruments at December 31,2003. 
We are also exposed to credit risk from our customers, but the concentration of this risk is minimized 

because we have a large and diverse customer base. 

Currency exposures 

We use cross-currency swaps and forward contracts to hedge debt that is denominated in foreign currencies. 
Derivatives that qualify for hedge accounting are marked to current rates, as is the underlying hedged item. 

The principal amount to be received under currency contracts was U.S.$589 million at December 31, 
2003. The principal amount to be paid under these contracts was $869 million at December 31,2003. 

interest rate exposures 

We use interest rate swaps to manage the mix of fixed and floating interest rates on our debt. We have entered 
into interest rate swaps with a notional amount of $195 million, maturing in 2006 and 201 1. On $100 million 
of swaps we pay interest at a rate equal to a three-month bankers’ acceptance floating interest rate plus 2.1%. 
We receive interest on these swaps at a rate of 6.8%. On $75 million of swaps we pay interest at a rate of 
3.2%. We receive interest on these swaps at a rate equal to the three-month bankers’ acceptance floating rate. 
On $20 million of swaps we pay interest at a rate of 4.7%. We receive interest on these swaps at a rate equal 
to the three-month bankers’ acceptance floating rate. 

We also have issued swaptions for the right to enter into interest rate swap transactions for a notional 
amount of $90 million. If exercised, these swaptions will involve the payment of fixed interest rates of 10.5% 
and 11% in exchange for the receipt of the three-month bankers’ acceptance floating rate from 2006 until 
maturity in 2013. 

We have also entered into a forward contract that fixes the interest rate on a notional amount of 
$150 million of future debt. 

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

See Note 11, Accounts receivable, 
for a description of the receivables 
securitization agreements that 
are outstanding. 
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
(continued) 

SHARE CAPITAL 

BCE Inc.’s articles of incorporation 
provide for an unlimited number of 
First Preferred Shares and Second 
Preferred Shares. The terms set out 
in the articles authorize BCE Inc.’s 
directors to issue the shares in 
one or more series and to set the 
number of shares and conditions 
of each series. 
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N O T E S  T O  C O N S O L I D A T E D  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S  

Transactions in 2003 

On February 28,2003, BCE Inc. issued 20 million Series AC shares for total proceeds of $510 million. Six ml-  
lion of the 20 million Series AC shares were issued by public offering for a subscription price of $153 million. 
The remaining 14 million Series AC shares were issued to the holders of BCE Inc.'s Series U shares. 

BCE Inc. elected to exercise its option to buy all of the Series U shares for $357 million (including a 
$7 million premium on redemption). The holders of the Series U shares then used the proceeds from the 
sale of their shares to buy the 14 million Series AC shares for the subscription price of $357 million. 

shares. On February 28,2003, all Series U and V shares were cancelled. 

Voting rights 

All of the issued and outstanding preferred shares at December 31,2003 were non-voting, except under 
special circumstances when the holders were entitled to one vote per share. 

SHARE CAP'TAL 
(continued) 

Before February 28, 2003, the Series U shares were convertible at the holder's option into Series V 

__ - E t t r i t h t  to-& _ _  

Holders of Series R, Z, AA and AC shar 
Holders of Series S and Y shares ar 
If Series Q, AB and AD shares are is 

to fixed cumulative quarterly dividends. 
ating adjustable cumulative monthly dividends. 

Redemption features 

BCE Inc. may redeem Series R, Z, AA and AC shares on the redemption date and every five years 
after that date. 

after that date. 
If Series T shares are issued, BCE Inc. may redeem them on the redemption date and every five years 

BCE Inc. may redeem Series S and Y shares at any 
If Series Q, AB and AD shares are issued, BCE Inc redeem them at any time. 

Dividend rate swaps 

In 2003, we elected to settle the dividend rate swaps that hedged dividend payments on $510 million of BCE Inc. 
Series AA preferred shares and $510 million of BCE Inc. Series AC preferred shares. These swaps converted 
the fixed-rate dividends on these preferred shares to floating-rate dividends. They were to mature in 2007. 

As a result of the early settlement, we received total cash proceeds of $83 million. We are deferring and 
amortizing the proceeds against the dividends on these preferred shares over the onginal term of the swaps. 
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 

BCE Inc.’s articles of incorporation 
provide for an unlimited number 
of voting common shares and 
non-voting Class B shares. The 
common shares and the Class B 
shares rank equally in the payment 
of dividends and in the distribution 
of assets if BCE Inc. is liquidated, 
dissolved or wound up. 

STOCK-BASED 
COMPENSATION PLANS 

(ii) Common shares and Class B shares 

issued 17,862,714 common shares through private placements to SBC in 2002 for $500 million. The net 
proceeds were used to pay for part of the repurchase of SBC’s 20% interest in BCH. 

were outstanding at December 3 1, 2003 and 2002. 

BCE Inc. issued 85,000,000 common shares to the public in 2002 for a total of $2.1 billion. BCE Inc. 

The table below provides details about the outstanding common shares of BCE Inc. No Class B shares 

2003 2002 

Number Stated Number Stated 
of shares capital of shares capital 

the plan. 
Each p company decides on its m 

tribute 10% to 12% of their annual earnings. Bel 
The trustee of the ESPs buys BCE Inc. co 

536 employees partic 
for employees was 6, 

t December 3 1,2003. The total n 
6,368,907 in 2002. Compensatio 

exercisable when they vest and can be exercised for a period of up to 10 years. Special vesting provisions 
may apply if: 

there is a change of control of BCE Inc. and the option holder’s employment ends under certain 
circumstances 
the option holder is employed by a designated subsidiary of BCE Inc., and BCE Inc.’s ownership 
interest in that subsidiary falls below the percentage set out in the program. 
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When the Nortel common shares were distributed in May 2000, each outstanding BCE Inc. stock option 
was cancelled and was replaced by two new stock options. The first option gives the holder the right to buy 
one BCE Inc. common share. The second option gives the holder the right to buy approximately 1.57 post- 
split common shares of Nortel (Nortel option) at exercise prices that maintain the holder’s econonuc position. 

STOCK-BASED 
COMPENSATtoN PLANS 
(continued) We ensured that exercising the Nortel options would not dilute Nortel shares by: 

calculating how many BCE Inc. common shares could be issued under options granted under stock 
option programs immediately before the day of the distribution 
factoring this number into the calculation that determined how many Nortel common shares were 
distributed for each BCE Inc. common share held. 

BCE Inc. may exercise all Nortel options that expire unexercised or are forfeited. The exercise price 
paid to Nortel is given back to BCE Inc. We credit an amount to retained earnings that is equal to the market 
share price of Nortel. 

The table below is a summary of the status of BCE Inc.’s stock option programs. 

2003 2002 2001 

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted- 
average average average 

Number exercise Number exercise Number exercise 
of shares price ($1 of shares price (J) of shares price (I) 

20,470,700 $33 18,527,376 $35 9,114,695 $27 Outstanding, beginning of year 
Granted 6,008,051 $28 8,051,159 $32 11.629.250 841 

The table below tells you more about BCE Inc.’s stock option programs at December 31, 2003. 

Options outstanding Options e x e r c i s a b l e  

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-  
average average a v e r a g e  

remaining exercise exercise 
Range of exercise price Number life price (f) Number p r i c e  (I) 

2,811,635 5 years $15 1,501,635 $1 3 Below $20 

7,092,577 9 years $28 344,440 $27 
$30-$40 8,139,419 8 Years $34 3.517.410 835 
$20-$30 

. .  
Over $40 6,751,914 7 years $41 4,403,634 $41 

24,795,545 $32 9,767,119 $34 

Teleglobe stock options 

When we acquired a controlling interest in Teleglobe in November 2000, holders of Teleglobe stock 
options were allowed to exercise their options under the original terms, except that when they exercise 
their options, they receive 0.91 of one BCE Inc. common share for each Teleglobe stock option exercised - 
All of the outstanding Teleglobe stock options that were not already vested, vested when Teleglobe was 
sold on December 3 1,2002. 

The table below is a summary of the status of Teleglobe’s stock option programs. 

2003 2002 2 001 

Weighted- Weighted- W e i g h t e d -  
Number average Number average Number average  

of BCE Inc. exercise of BCE Inc exercise of BCE Inc e x e r c i s e  
shares price (I) of shares price (5) of shares p r i c e  6) 

Outstanding, beginning of year 4,266,723 $37 10,204,966 $39 18,934,537 8 3 6  
Exercised (188,709) $19 (182,554) $16 (2,911,216) $ 24 
Expired/forfeited (3,122,839) $35 (5,755,689) $40 (5,818,355) $44 
Outstanding, December 31 955,175 $21 4,266,723 $37 10,204,966 s 39 
Exercisable, December 31 955,175 $21 4,266,723 $37 6,073,732 9 38 
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(con tinoed) 
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We maintain defined benefit plans that provide pension, other retirement and post-employment benefits for 
almost all of our employees. 

Components of accrued benefit asset (liability) 

The table below shows the change in benefit obligations, change in fair value of plan assets and the funded 
status of the plans. 

EMPLOYEE BENEFiT PLANS 

Pension benefits Other benefits 

Notes 2003 2002 2003 2002 

Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year 11,815 11,737 1,628 1,444 
Current service cost 222 223 31 35 
Interest cost on accrued benefit obligation 757 149 105 94 
Actuarial (gains) losses 513 (19) (52) I73 
Benefits payments (7 16) (654) (87) (77) 
Employee contributions 6 6 - - 
Business combinations 26 1 
Special termination costs 4 (27) 122 - - 
Plan amendment 4 4 50 2 - 
Divestitures and other 3 and 9 (64) (425) (12) (42) 

Accrued benefit obligation, end of year 12,510 11,815 1,615 1,628 

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year 11.587 13,532 125 134 

- - 

Actual return (loss) on plan assets 1,583 (854) 8 1 

Emploiee contribution 6 6 - - 
Business combinations - 25 - - 
Divestitures and other 3 and 9 (46) (489) (9) 

Fair value of plan assets, end of year (1) 12.574 11,587 133 125 

Plan surplus (deficit) 64 (228) (1,482) (1,503) 

- 

Unamortized net actuarial (gains) losses 1,682 2,241 (58) (10) 
Unamortized past service costs 71 95 2 1 
Unamortized transitional (asset) obligation (80) (143) 270 316 
Valuation allowance (124) (136) 
Accrued benefit asset (liability), end of year 1,613 1,829 (1,268) (1,136) 

Accrued benefit asset included in other long-term assets 1,728 2,070 - - 
Accrued benefit liability included in other long-term liabilities (1 15) (241) (1,268) (1,136) 

(1) The market-related value of pension plan assets was $13,044 million at December 31,2003 and $12,542 million at December 31,2002. 

- - 

For pension plans with an accrued benefit obligation that was more than plan assets: 
the accrued benefit obligation was $2,737 million at December 31,2003 and $2,683 million at 
December 3 1,2002 
the fair value of plan assets was $2,010 million at December 31, 2003 and $1,909 million at 
December 3 1, 2002. 

For pension plans with an accrued benefit obligation that was less than plan assets: 
the accrued benefit obligation was $9,773 million at December 31,2003 and $9,132 million at 
December 3 1,2002 
the fair value of plan assets was $10,564 million at December 31, 2003 and $9,678 million at 
December 31,2002. 
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Pension plan assets 

The table below shows the allocation of our pension plan assets at December 31, 2003 and 2002, target allo- 
cation for 2003 and expected long-term rate of return by asset class. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

(continued) 
Weighted-average 

Weighted-average Percentage of plan expected long-term 
target allocation assets at December 31 rate of return 

Asset category 2003 2003 2002 2003 

Equity securities 45%-65% 56% 58% 9.0% 

Total 100% 100% 7.5% 
Debt securities 35%-55% 44% 42% 5.5% 

Minimum funding Discretionary Total 
requirements funding funding t 2003 -... 

Aliant 70 55 125 
Bell Canada 11 6 17 

t 
Contractual obligations 

COMMITMENTS AND 
CONTINGENCIES 

94 million drawn under our committed 
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Our commitments for capital expenditures include investments to expand and update our networks, 
and to meet customer demand. Other purchase obligations consist mainly of contractual obligations under 

COMMITMENTS AND service contracts. 
CONTINGENCIES 
(can tinued) 

Other long-term liabilities included in the table relate to: 
Bell Canada’s future payments over the remaining life of its contract with Certen for the development 
of Bell Canada’s billing system. The total amount was $301 million at December 31, 2003. 
Bell Globemedia’s obligations relating to CRTC benefits owing on previous business combinations. 
These and other long-term liabilities were $130 million at December 31,2003. 

At December 31,2003, we ha 
nsisted of an accrued emplo 

Agreement with CGI 

On July 24, 2003, BCE 
shareholders’ agreement 

the put rights of CG 
cancelled 

commitment to repay the advances the plaintiffs made as members of the lending syndicate, and that the 
court should disregard Teleglobe as a corporate entity and hold BCE Inc. responsible to repay the advances 
as Teleglobe’s alter ego. 

The plaintiffs claim damages of U.S.$1.19 billion, plus interest and costs, which they allege is equal 
to the amount they advanced. This represents approximately 95.2% of the total U.S.$1.25 billion that the 
lending syndicate advanced. 

BCE Inc. believes that it has strong defences, and it intends to vigorously defend its position. 
While we cannot predict the outcome of any legal proceeding, based on information currently available, 
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Kroll Restructuring lawsuit 
In February 2003, a lawsuit was filed in the Ontario Superior Court of Justice by Kroll Restructuring Ltd., 
in its capacity as interim receiver of Teleglobe, against five former directors of Teleglobe. This lawsuit was 
filed in connection with Teleglobe’s redemption of its third series preferred shares in April 2001 and the 
retraction of its fifth series preferred shares in March 2001. 

The plaintiff is seeking a declaration that such redemption and retraction were prohibited under the 
Canada Business Corporations Act and that the five former directors should be held jointly and severally 
liable to restore to Teleglobe all amounts paid or distributed on such redemption and retraction, being an 
aggregate of approximately $661 million, plus interest. 

While BCE Inc. is not a defendant in this lawsuit, Teleglobe was at the relevant time a subsidiary of 
BCE Inc. Pursuant to standard policies and subject to applicable law, the five former Teleglobe directors are 
entitled to seek indemnification from BCE Inc. in connection with this lawsuit. 

While we cannot predict the outcome of any legal proceeding, based on information currently available, 
BCE Inc. believes that the defendants have strong defences and that the claims of the plaintiffs will be 
vigorously defended against. 

Other litigation 
We become involved in various other claims and litigation as a regular part of our business. 

2003, management believes that the resolution of these claims and litigation will not have a material and 
negative effect on our consolidated financial position or results of ope 

_ _ _ ~ -  -~ ____ ~ _ _  ~~ - 

While we cannot predict the final outcome of claims and litigation that were pending at December 31, 
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COMMITMENTS AND 
CONTINGENCIES 
(continued) 

Sales of assets and businesses 

As part of transactions involving business dispositions and sales of assets, we may be required to pay counter- 
parties for costs and losses incurred as a result of breaches of representations and warranties, intellectual 
property right infringement, loss or damages to property, environmental liabilities, changes in, or in the inter- 
pretation of, laws and regulations (including tax legislation), valuation differences, litigation against the counter- 
parties, earn-out guarantees if the disposed business does not meet specific targets, contingent liabilities of a 
disposed business or reassessments of previous tax filings of the corporation that carries on the business. 

We are unable to make a reasonable estimate of the maximum potential amount we could be required to 
pay counterparties. While some of the agreements specify a maximum potential exposure of $2.1 billion in 
total, many do not specify a maximum amount or limited period. The amount also depends on the outcome 
of future events and conditions, which cannot be predicted. A total of $16 million has been accrued in the 
consolidated balance sheet relating to this type of indemnification or guarantee at December 31,2003. 
Historically, we have not made any significant payments under these indemnifications or guarantees. 

Sales of services 

As part of transactions involving sales of services, we may be required to pay counterparties for costs and 
losses incurred as a result of breaches of representations and warranties, changes in, or in the interpretation 
of, laws and regulations (including tax legislation) or litigation against the counterparties. 

We are unable to make a reasonable estimate of the maximum potential amount we could be required to 
pay counterparties. While some of the agreements specify a maximum potential exposure of $261 million in 
total, many do not specify a maximum amount or limited period. The amount also depends on the outcome 
of future events and conditions, which cannot be predicted. No amount has been accrued in the consolidated 
balance sheet relating to this type of indemnification or guarantee at December 31, 2003. Historically, we 
have not made any significant payments under these indemnifications or guarantees. 

Purchases and development of assets 

parties for costs and losses incurred as a result of breaches of representations and warranties, loss or damages 
to property, changes in, or in the interpretation of, laws and regulations (including tax legislation), or litiga- 

We are unable to make a reasonable estimate of the maximum potential amount we could be required to 

1 As part of transactions involving purchases and development of assets, we may be required to pay counter- 

b tion against the counterparties. 

pay counterparties. While some of the agreements specify a maximum potential exposure of $1.5 billion in 
total, many do not specify a maximum amount or limited period. The amount also depends on the outcome 
of future events and conditions, which cannot be predicted. No amount has been accrued in the consolidated 
balance sheet relating to this type of indemnification or guarantee at December 31, 2003. Historically, we 
have not made any significant payments under these indemnifications or guarantees. 

GUARANTEES 

As a regular part of our business, 
we enter into agreements that 
provide for indemnification and 
guarantees to counterparties that 
may require us to pay for costs 
and losses incurred in various 
types of transactions. 

, 
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GUARANTEES 
(continued) 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE 
FOR STATEMENTS OF 
CASH FLOWS 

~ 

RECON CI LI AT1 0 N 0 F 
CANADIAN GAAP TO 
UNITED STATES GAAP 

1,636 612 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED F INANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Statements of accumulated other comprehensive loss 

Currency translation adjustment 
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments (k) 

2001 RECONCILIATION OF 
2003 2002 

UNITED STATES GAAP 

Reconciliation of total shareholders’ equity 

(d) Restructuring and other charges 

Under Canadian GAAP, convertible debentures are separated into a debt component and an equity compo 
component is increased to reach its original face value at maturity by recognlzlng an accretion expense as 
Under United States GAAP, convertible debentures that do not have certain characteristics are recorded as 
accretion expense is recognized. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED F INANCIAL STATEMENTS 

RECONCILIATION OF 
CANADIAN GAAP TO 
UNlTFD STATES GAAP 
(contitrued) 

lh) Income taxes 
The income tax adjustment reflects the impact on income taxes of all of the Un 
above. The accounting for Income taxes under Canadian GAAP and United States GAAP is essentially the same, except that: 

income tax rates of enacted or substantively enacted tax law are used to calculate future income tax assets and liabilities under 

only income tax rates of enacted tax law can be used under United States GAAP. 

States GAAP adjustments that we describe 

Canadian GAAP 

(1) Non-controlling interest 

0) Discontinued operations 
The non-controlling interest adjustment represents the impact of all of the United States GAAP adjustments on non-controlling interest. 

Differences between Canadian GAAP and United States GAAP will cause the historical cartylng values of the net assets of discontin- 
ued operations to be different 

Under this standard, 

In addition, on Januaty 1 
comprehensive income at th 

rward contracts relat 
of $2,005 million, an 

AA preferred shares and $510 million 
in effect, converted the fixed-rate 
s a  result of the early settlement, we 

remaining original terms of the swaps. Under United States GAAP, these dividend rate swaps did not qualify for hedge accounting 
and were recorded on the balance sheet at falr value. As a result, the amortization of the deferred gain under Canadian GAAP is 
reversed for United States GAAP purposes. 

I 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED F I N A N C I A L  STATEMENTS 

(n) Impact of adopting new accounting standards 
Business combinations and goodwill and other intangible assets 
Effective January 1, 2002, we followed the requirements of SFAS No. 142, Goodwilland Other Intangible Assets. This standard 
required us to stop amortizing goodwill and indefinite-life intangible assets to earnings and to assess them for impairment each 
year. It includes a transitional impairment test. 

RECONCILIATION OF 
CANADIAN GAAP TO 
UNITED STATES GAAP 
(continued) 

Effective June 30, 2002, we followed the requirements of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other lntangible Assets: 

the quantitative impact of the transitional impairment test measured at January 1,2002 on 

four reporting units based on discounted future cash flows 
those implied by public company trading multiples 

ting policy as of January 1, 2002, as required by the transition 

Costs associated with exit o 
Effective Januaty 1, 2003, FAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or  Disposal Activities. The new 

1 We followed the recommendations in this section for 
Asset retirement obligations 

iement Obligations. It describes how to recognize 

for any changes resulting from the passage of time These obligations are initially measure 

Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, 

ut guarantees they make, whether or not they will have to make 
/ 

A 
A 

A 
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BOARD O F  DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES 
- 

I3o;ird of Directors 
( 1 %  nt Mrrrch 10, 2004 

Andre Berard, O.C. 
Montreal, Quebec 
Corporate Director and chairman, 
National Bank of Canada* 

Director since January 2003 

Ronald A. Brenneman 
Calgary, Aiberta 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
and a director, Petro-Canada 

Director since November 2003 

Richard J. Currie, C.M. 
loronto, Ontario 
Chairman, BCE Inc. and Bell Canada 

Director since May 1995 

Anthony S. Fell, O.C. 
Toronto, Ontario 
Chairman, RBC Dominion 
Securities Limited 

Director since January 2002 

Donna Soble Kaufman 
Toronto, Ontario 
Lawyer and Corporate Director 

Director since June 1998 

*Resigned as Chairman, National Bank 
of Canada on March IO, 2004. 

Thomas E. Kierans, O.C. 
Toronto, Ontario 
Chairman, Canadian Institute for 
Advanced Research 

Director since Ami1 1999 

Brian M. Levitt 
Montreai, Quebec 
Co-Chair, Osler, Hoskin & Harcourt LLP 

Director since May 1998 

The Honourable 
Edward C. Lumley, P.C. 
South lancastec Ontario 
Vice-Chair, BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc 

Director since January 2003 

Judith Maxwell, C.M. 
Ottawa, Ontario 
President, Canadian Policy 
Research Networks Inc 

Oirector since January 2000 

John H. McArthur 
Wayiand, Massachusetts 
Dean Emeritus, Harvard University 
Graduate School of Business 
Administration 

Director since May 1995 

Thomas C. O'Neill, F.C.A. 
ijon Milis, Ontario 
Chartered Accountant and 
Corporate Director 

Director since January 2003 

Robert C. Pozen 
Boston, Massachusetts 
Chairman, MFS Investment Management 

Director since February 2002 

Michael J. Sabia 
Montreai, Quebec 
President and 
Chief Executive Officer, BCE lnc 
Chief Executive Officer, Bell Canada 

Director since October 2002 

Paul M.  Tellier, P.C., C.C., Q.C. 
Montreai, Quebec 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
and a director, Bombardier lnc 

Director since April 1999 

Victor L. Young, O.C. 
St. john's, Newfoundand  
Corporate Director 

Director since May 1995 

B C I  board members from left to right: Thomas C. O'Neill, F.C.A, Brian M.  tevitt, Richard J. Currie, C.M., Ronald A. Brenneman, Judith Maxwell, C.M., John H McArthur, Andre Berard, O.C., 1 
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BOARD O F  DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES 

Executive\ Michael 1. Sabia 
as ut March 10, 2004 President and 

Chief Executive Officer 

William D. Anderson 
President 
BCE Ventures 

Pierre J. Blouin 
Group President 
Consumer Markets 
Bell Canada 

Laurier (Larry) J. Boisvert 
President and 
Chief Executive Officer 
ieiesar i a n a o a  

Linda Caty 
Corporate Secretary 

Isabelle Courville 

Peter Daniel Karen H. Sheriff 
Executive Vice-president President 
Communications and Small and Medium 
Marketing Services Business Markets 

Ivan Fecan 
President and David A. Southwell 

Bell Canada 

Chief Executive Officer 
Bell Globemedia 

Tony Gaffney 
President and 
Chief Executive Officer 
BCE Emergis 

Lawson A.W. Hunter 
t x e c u w e  vice-rresioenr 
Government and 
Regulatory Affairs 

Eugene Roman 
Group President 

Group President 
Operations 
Bell Canada 

President Svstems and T ~ J ~ n d o o v  MahPz t Wirkr;lm;lzinnh~ 

Martine Turcotte 
Chief Legal Officer 

Siim A. Vanaselja 
Chief Financial Officer 

Stephen G. Wetmore 
Group President 
National Markets 
Bell Canada 

_I I 

Enterprise Markets Bell Canada Senior Vice-President 
Bell Canada Audit and Risk Management 

Robert C. Poren, Anthony 8. Fell, 0.C , Paul M.  Tellier, P.C , C C., Q.C., Donna Soble Kaufman, The Honourable Edward C. Lumley, P.C., Michael J. Sabia, Thomas E.  Kierans, O.C., Victor L. Young, O.C. 

. .  
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COMMITTEES OF THE B O A R D  I 

Members of committees 
of the board 

Audit 
T.C. O’Ncili - Chairman 
T.E. Kierans 
1. Maxwel: 
R.C. Poreii 
V.L. Yormg 

Corporate governance 
R.J. Crirrie - Chairman 
D. Soble Kaufman 
T.E. Kierans 
The Honourable E.C. Lumley 
J.H. McArthur 

Management resources 
and compensation 
P.M. Tellier - Chairman 
R.A. Brenneman 
AS. Fell 
B.M. Levitt 
J.H. McArthur 
V.L. Young 

Pension fund 
R.C. Pozen - Chairman 
A. Berard 
A.S. Fell 
D. Soble Kaufman 
B.M. Levitt 
J. Maxwell 

The committees of the board of directors, and their purpose and members, are identified below. 

The audit committee 

The audit committee assists the board in the oversight of: 
the integrity of BCE’s financial statements and related information 
BCE’s compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements 
the independence, qualifications and appointment of the external auditors 
the performance of the internal and external auditors 

management’s responsibility for reporting on internal controls. 

orate governance guidelines 
ome directors 

ent resources 

The PFC assists the board 



SHAREHOLDER IN  FORMATION 

2004 SHAREHOLDER MEETING TAX INFORMATION SHAREHOLDER SERVICES 

Our shareholder meeting will take place at 9:00 a.m. 
(Pacific time), Wednesday, May 26,2004, at the 
Vancouver Convention & Exhibition Centre, 
999 Canada Place, Vancouver, British Columbia. 

The meeting will also be webcast five on our 
website at www.bce.ca. 

We offer various ways to vote your shares. For 
more details, consult our proxy circular or visit 
our website. 

Dividends and Capital Gains on 
Your BCE Shares 
BCE common shareholders are required to pay tax 
on dividends as well as any capital gains they 

-realize when they sell their shares or are deemed 
to have sold them. If you received Nortel Networks 
common shares in May 2000, you should contact 
the Investor Relations group to learn more on 
the tax implications of the BCUNortel Plan of 
Arrangement or visit www.bce.ca. 

Dividend Reinvestment and 
Stock Purchase Plan 
This plan provides a convenient method for eligible 
holders of BCE common shares to reinvest their 
dividends and make optional cash contributions 
to purchase additional common shares without 
brokerage costs. 

Dividend Direct Deposit Service 
Avoid postal delays and trips to the bank by joining 

n 

Foreign Investors 
Dividends on BCE shares paid or credited to non- 
residents of Canada are subject to a 25% with- 
holding tax unless reduced by treaty. Under current 
tax treaties, US. and U.K. residents are subiect to 

E-delivery Service 
Enrol in our e-delivery service to receive the proxy 
tu 
ments by e-mail. 

RELEASE DATES 

First quarter - May 5,2004 
Second quarter -August 4,2004 
Third quarter - November 3,2004 

t m  -__ - .  
Quarterly and annual reports as well as other 
corporate documents can be found on our website. 
If you wish to be notified electronically when docu- 
ments are posted, register online at w.bce.ca  for 

US. Investors 
Since January 1,2001, BCE has been required to 
solicit taxpayer identification numbers (TIN) and 
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form W-9 certifica- 

mailings by consolidating your accounts. 

For more details on anv of these services, reaistered 
sharehokfers must contact the Pansfkr mt Afon- 

our service "News Alerts". Corporate documents can 
also be requested from the Investor Relations group. 

SHARE FACTS 

Symbol 
BCE 

Listings 
Toronto (TSX), New York (NYSE) and Zurich (SWX) 
stock exchanges 

Common Shares Outstanding 
923,988,818 as at December 31,2003 

Stock Splits 
Three-for-one on April 26, 1979 and two-for-one 
on May 15,1997 

Quarterly Dividend* 
$0.30 per common share 

ZUU4 DTvi&ncE&ecTuIe3 ~ 

Record Date Payment Date 
March 15,2004 April 15,2004 
June 15,2004 July 15,2004 
September 15,2004 October 15,2004 
December 15,2004 January 15,2005 

'Subject to approval by the Board of Directors 

tions of residency from certain US. investors. Where 
these have not been received, BCE may be required 
to deduct the IRS' specified backup withholding 
tax. The backup withholding rate on dividends is 
currently 28%. Shareholders who did not provide 
their TIN and W-9 certification of residency and 
had the backup withholding tax applied on their 
dividends can obtain a refund or credit against 
their US. federal income tax through the filing of 
their income tax return the following year. 

Under the Jobs and Growth Tax Reconciliation Act 
of 2003, dividends paid to US. individuals by 
most US. public companies and qualifying foreign 
corporations, including public Canadian companies 
such as BCE whose shares are readily tradable on 
a US. stock exchange (e.g., the New York Stock 
Exchange), will be subject to US. federal income 
tax at a maximum rate of 15% (or 5% for those 

ditions are met. 

For additional information, please contact your 
tax advisor, 

h t h ! 2 h & t i X b ~ D l D I l g & ~ -  

registered shareholders must contact their brokeis. 

CONTACT INFORMATION 

Transfer Agent and Registrar 
For information on shareholder services or any 
other inquiries regarding your account (including 
stock transfer, address change, lost certificates 
and tax forms), contact: 

Computershare Trust Company of Canada 
9th Floor, 100 University Avenue 
Toronto, Ontario M5J 2Y1 
e-mail: bce@computershare.com 
Tel.: (514) 982-7555 
or 1 800 561 -0934 (toll free in Canada and the US.) 
Fax: (416) 263-9394 
or 1 888 453-0330 (toll free in Canada and the US.) 
or visit their website at w,computershare.com 

BCE Inc. 
Investor Relations 
1 OOO, rue de La GauchetiPre Ouest 
Bureau 3700 
Montreal (Quebec) 
H3B 4Y7 
e-mail: investor.relationsObce.ca 
Tel.: 1 800 339-6353 
Fax: (514) 786-3970 
or visit the Investors section on our website at 
www. bce.ca 

~~~~ ~ ~~~~ ~ 

TRADEMARKS 
The following is a list of all our trademarks referred to and used as such in this annual report. BCE is a trademark of BCE Inc. The rings and head design, Bell Canada Enterprises corporate logo, Bell, 
Sympatico, Sympatico High Speed Edition, Bell Mobility, Emily, Single Number Reach, Business Back-up and The Bell Bundle are trademarks of Bell Canada. ExpressVU is a trademark of Bell ExpressVu 
limited Partnership. The Globe and Mail is a trademark of Bell Globemedia Publishing Inc. Mobile Browser is a trademark of Bell Mobility Inc. CW is a trademark of CW Inc. Nimiq and Anik are 
trademarks of Telesat Canada. TSN and RDS are trademarks of The Sports Network Inc. Any other trademarks, or corporate, trade or domain names, used in this report are the property of their 
owners. We believe that our trademarks are vely important to our success and take the appropriate measures to protect them. We spend considerable time and resources overseeing, registering 
and prosecuting those who infringe on them. We also take great care not to infringe on trademarks of others. 

Cette publication est disponible en fralyair 
BCE's Annual Report is printed with vegetable-based ink and is recyclable. 

mailto:bce@computershare.com
http://w,computershare.com


BCE Inc. 
1000, rue de la Gauchetiere Ouest 
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Montreal (Quebec) 
H3B 4Y7 
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email: bcecomms@bce.ca 
tel: 1 888 932-6666 
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BCE NEXXIA CORPORATION 
Balance sheets 
As at December 31 
(in U.S. dollars, unaudited) 

2003 2002 

$ $ 

Assets 
Current assets 

Cash 1,053,955 432,385 
a - I - ,  Due h-om related parties 1mf!?v/j 6 ,  6, 

Prepaid expenses - 411,075 
Deferred charges 3,085,370 3,110,295 
Other receivables 883,183 - 

156,s 16,881 651309,930 

Fixed assets (Note 3) 88,586,032 88,685,855 
245,102,913 153,995,785 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities 

Due to related parties 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Deferred revenues 

107,476,769 18,730,996 
- 4,2 17,543 

8.910.383 9.394.428 
116,387,152 32,342,967 

Future income tax liabilities 4,532,857 3,911,350 
120.920.009 36.254.317 

Shareholders' equity 
Share capital (Note 4) 120,025,675 11 1,338,119 
Retained earnings 4,157,229 6,403,349 

124,182,904 117,741,468 
245,102,913 153,995,785 
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BCE NEXXIA CORPORATION 
Statement of earnings 
For the years ended December 31 
(in U.S. dollars, unaudited) 

2003 2002 

$ $ 

Revenues 
Sales 85,123,796 109,529,486 
Leasing 1,026,930 538,007 

- 
W15U9726 , ,  

Expenses 
Operating 75,496,422 98,946,841 
n a m  . .  ? Q  7 x 2 2  7 <7L 7 2 1  ' 9-4 ' ,-r-rd 

Unrealized foreign exchange loss 3,627,873 
' , J  I " ,  ' J I 

Other 344,599 77,733 
87,3 16,427 106,601,305 

Earnings/(loss) before income taxes (1,165,70 1) 3,466,188 
Income tax expense 1,080,4 19 1,386,374 

Net earnings/(loss) (2,246,120) 2,079,814 
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BCE NEXXIA CORPORATION 
Statements of retained earnings 
For the years ended December 31 
(in U.S. dollars, unaudited) 

2003 2002 

Balance at the beginning of the period 6,403,349 4,323,535 
Net Income/( loss) (2,246,120) 2,079,814 

Page 3 of 7 



(7,747,710) 

Financing 
Issue of common shares 8,687,556 

Cash Position 
Increase during the period 621,570 
At the beginning of the period 432,385 
At the end of the period 1,053,955 
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BCE NEXXIA CORPORATION 
Notes to the financial statements 
December 31,2003 
(in U.S. dollars, unaudited) 

1. BCE Nexxia Corporation 
BCE Nexxia Corporation (“Nexxia US”) was incorporated on December 15, 1998, under the name of 
Natco Telecommunications Corporation (“Natco”). On January 6, 1999, Natco changed its name to 
BCE Nexxia Inc. (US) On February 4, 1999, BCE Nexxia Inc. (US) changed its name to BCE Nexxia 
Corporation. Nexxia US is a wholly-owned subsidiary of 3522024 Canada Inc. 

There is a Management Agreement between this company and BCE Nexxia lnc., whereby BCE 
Nexxia Inc. manages this company using its own Policy on Authorizations. As of April 1,2003, the 
Management Agreement is considered to be between Bell Canada and BCE Nexxia Corporation in 
view of the amalgamation of BCE Nexxia Inc. and Bell Canada. 

2. Accounting policies 
a) Basis of presentation 

The accompanying financial statements are prepared primarily for income tax filing purposes. 
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

b) Depreciation 

Depreciation of fixed assets is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful life of the assets, as follows: 

Network assets 20 years 

c) Future income taxes 

The Company follows the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, 
future income taxes are recognized based on the expected future tax consequences of 
differences between the carrying amount of balance sheet items and their corresponding tax 
basis, using the enacted or substantially enacted tax rates for the years in which the differences 
are expected to reverse. 
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BCE NEXXIA CORPORATION 
Notes to the financial statements 
December 31,2003 
(in U.S. dollars, unaudited) 

2. Accounting policies 
d) Measurement uncertainty 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted 

reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of financial statements and revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

- 
5. Fixed assets 

2003 
cost Net Book Value 

Network assets 101,970,095 77,459,594 
Assets under construction 17,104,77 1 11,126,438 

119,074,866 88,586.032 

4. Share capital 
Authorized 

The Articles of the Corporation provide for an authorized number of 20,000 common shares. 

Stated Capital 
Dec. 31,2003 

Number 

1,484 Common Shares $120,025,675 
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BCE NEXXIA CORPORATION 
Notes to the financial statements 
December 31,2003 
(in U.S. dollars. unaudited) 

5. Related party transactions 

During the year, the Corporation earned Irrevocable Right to Use (IRU) and transfer pricing revenues 
from BCE Nexxia Inc. and Bell Canada of $85,123,796. 

6. Change in working capital 

Dec.31,2003 

$ 
Decrease (increase) in current assets 

Due from related parties (90,138,198) 
Prepaid expenses 411,075 
Deferred charges 24,925 
Other receivable (883,183) 

Increase (decrease) in current liabilities 
Due to related parties 88,745,773 
Accrued liabilities & others (4,2 17,543) 
Deferred revenues (484.045) 

(6.541.196) 
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